
     THE PRICE FAMILY 
 
            Compiled by Kathleen Neal Dawson, 2008 
 
 
This compilation is a work in progress, a summary of what I have to date.  I have included 
information that is known to be true, as well as possible leads for further investigation.   I noted 
original sources as they were reported to me; I have not necessarily verified them myself.   A 
major source for this work is my parents Ernest Fulton Neal and Laura Emerson Neal, who 
passed their notes on to me when they died.  More information has been obtained from internet 
sources.  You should be especially wary of accepting that information at face value, but I thought 
that it might provide leads for further research at another time.   
 
 
JOHN PRICE    m.  ANN (Matthews?) 
1584/5 – 1628      1603/4 – bef 1666 
 
Unless otherwise stated, the information on this family down to William, son of John and 
Hannah Williamson Price, is from the Adventurers of Purse and  Person, 4th Edition.  
John Price came from England to Virginia on the Starr which landed 22 May 1611.  His 
wife Ann came on the Francis Bonaventure in Aug 1620.  They were listed in the Muster 
of 24 Jan 1624/5, when he was listed as age 40 and she as age 21.   The record shows him 
elected to the Assembly representing Neck of Land in Henrico in 1625, and being present 
when the Assembly met on 10 May 1625.  After John’s death in 1628, Ann married (2) 
Robert Hallom and (3) Daniel Llewellyn.  An internet source states that John was born in 
Brecknot, Wales. 
 
Children of John and Ann Price: 
1. Mary Price  b.  1623/4 (age 3 months in the Muster of Jan 1624/5) 
2. Matthew Price  died without issue 
 d.  aft 23 May 1638 
3. John Price  m.  a daughter of John Wall 
 d.  bef 1662 
 a. Daniel Price 
 b. John Price 

The father John Price died leaving orphan sons Daniel and John, as mentioned in 
the will of John Rowen, dated 01 May 1662 (Henrico Co. Miscellaneous Court 
Records I, pp. 15-16).   In 1677, the 2 boys sold the land that their uncle Matthew, 
heir of John Price, had patented 23 May 1638 (Henrico Co. Wills & Deeds 1677-
92, p. 186).    

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
A. Daniel Price   m.  Susanna Carter 
 Abt 1654 – abt 01 Aug 1692    
 

They married after 23 July 1676.  She was the daughter of Giles Carter and Hannah 
Crew.  Susanna m (2) Thomas Williamson.  On 01 June 1696 William Sewell and 
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Theoderick Carter (Susanna’s brother) offered themselves as security for the estate of the 
orphans of Daniel Price in the hands of Thomas Williamson (Henrico Co. Order Book 
1694-1701, p. 110).   
 

 1. Daniel Price   m. Mary (Hughes?) 
  abt 1692 – 07 Mar 1770  
 

In June 1714, Daniel gave receipt for his share of his father Daniel’s estate to 
Thomas Williamson “who intermarried with Susan, my mother” (Henrico co. 
Wills & Deeds, 1710-14, p. 25).   

 
On 15 Aug 1762, he and his 1st cousin John Price, joined by their wives Mary and 
Hannah, sold 100 acres of land (Henrico Co. Deed Book, 1750-67, p. 774). 
 
Daniel’s will was written 21 Feb 1767 and proven in Henrico Co., VA, on 07 Mar 
1770 (Henrico Co. Miscellaneous Court Records VI, p. 2001).  Daniel and Mary 
had children John, Daniel, William, Elizabeth, and Hannah. 
 
a. John Price  m. Mary 
 His will was proven 15 Mar 1783 in Henrico Co., VA (Will Book 4, 1809-
 15, p. 200, rerecorded 02 Mar 1812). 
 
b. Daniel Price  m. Mary 
  
c. William Price  m. Mary Williamson 
 His will was written 30 Aug 1791 and proven 05 Jan 1793in Charlotte 
 Co., VA (Will Book 2, p. 36). 
 
d. Elizabeth Price m. (1)  John Curd 
     (2)  Richard Oglesby 
 
e. Hannah Price  m. Harwood 
 

 
B. JOHN PRICE   m.  Jane Pew/Pugh 
 abt 1656 – June 1711    d. aft June 1711 
 

Jane was the daughter of Henry Pew and Jane Womack.  Jane is named in her 
father’s will written 05 May 1709 and proven 03 Mar 1711/2 (Henrico Co. Wills 
& Deeds 1710-1714, p. 115).  
 
John Price’s will was written 15 Dec 1710 and proven June 1711 (Henrico Co. 
Wills & Deeds 1710-1714, p. 79). John and Jane had children Mary, John, Daniel, 
Pugh/Pew, and Elizabeth.  Jane m (2) Hugh Ligon (descendant of Thomas 
Harris). 
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1. Mary Price  m.  John Cannon 
 bef 02 Feb 1690/1 – aft 1745  d. abt Feb 1734/5 
   
 a. Jane Cannon  m. Samuel Pincham 
 
2. John Price  m.  Hannah Williamson 
 abt 1696 – bef 20 Aug 1751   
 

Hannah was the daughter of Thomas Williamson and Susanna Carter, 
widow of Daniel Price, this John Price’s uncle.  Susanna Carter’s mother 
was Hannah Crew/Crewes.  In Henrico Co. Wills & Deeds 1725-37, pp. 
165-66, deed of gift from Thomas Williamson to his grandson Daniel 
Price, son of John Price and Hannah his wife.   
 
On 07 Dec 1713, John’s mother and stepfather Hugh Ligon conveyed to 
him one-half of the tract of land on which Henry Pew lived (Henrico Co. 
Wills & Deed 1710-14, p. 238).   
 
On 18 Jul 1748, John Price deeded some land to his son Daniel 
(Goochland Co. Deed Bk 5, p. 434).  Also on 18 Jul 1748, John gave 100 
acres to Samuel Shepherd who had married his daughter Elizabeth 
(Goochland Co. Deed Book 5, p. 448).  On 23 Sep 1749, John deeded land 
to his son William (Goochland Co., Deed Book 6, p. 32).  On 23 Jun 1766, 
John conveyed to his son William the 64 acres where he lived Henrico Co 
Wills & Deeds 1750-67, p. 971).   
 

 a. Daniel Price   m. Mary (Williamson?) 
  abt 1718 - 1801 
 

In Henrico Co. Wills & Deeds 1725-37, pp. 165-66, deed of gift 
from Thomas Williamson to his grandson Daniel Price, son of 
John Price and Hannah his wife.   
 
On 18 Jul 1748, John Price deeded some land to his son Daniel 
(Goochland Co. Deed Bk 5, p. 434).   
 
Daniel and Mary moved to Lunenburg Co., VA by 1762, then on 
to Craven Co., SC, then Orangeburgh Dist., SC, and by 1800 to 
Edgefield Co., SC. 

  (1) Samuel Price 
  (2) Mary Price 
  (3) Daniel Price  
  (4) William Price   
  (5) John Price 
  (6) Cuthbert Price 
  (7) Joseph Price 
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 b. William Price   m. Susannah Burton 
  03 Sep 1730 –  by 18 Sep 1815        15 Jan 1738 – aft 20 Nov 1815 
 

They married 29 Mar 1752 in Henrico Co., VA.  The marriage date 
and birth dates of William and Susannah are cited from a Family 
Bible and reported in the National Genealogical Quarterly June 
1959).  William Price is a recognized DAR Patriot. He was 
appointed Constable for Pittsylvania Co., VA, in November Court 
1774 (Pittsylvania co. Court Records Book 2, p. 412) and 
furnished supplies for the Continental Line as recorded in 
Pittsylvania Co. Record of Claims for Supplies Continental Line 
Use—Revolutionary War, pp. 30, 51. 
 
Susannah was the daughter of Hutchins Burton and Susannah 
Allen.  The will of Hutchins Burton (Henrico Co., VA, written 09 
May 1763, recorded 03 Oct 1763) names his daughter Susannah 
Price and son-in-law William Price and her daughters Sarley, 
Susannah, and Elizabeth. 
 
William Price’s father John deeded land to William on 23 Sep 
1749 (Goochland Co., Deed Book 6, p. 32).  On 23 Jun 1766, John 
conveyed to his son William the 64 acres where he lived (Henrico 
Co Wills & Deeds 1750-67, p. 971).   
 
Both William and Susannah were born in Henrico Co., VA.  
Around 1776-1784 they lived in Louisa Co., VA (sold land in 
Goochland in 1769; Louisa Co., VA, Deed Book E, 204; Louisa 
Co., VA, Deed Book F, 455).  By Nov 1786 they were in 
Pittsylvania Co., VA, where William’s death is recorded.  
(Pittsylvania Co., Deed Book 4, p. 368; Pittsylvania Co., Deed 
Book 7, p. 201).   
 
William’s will was written 04 Dec 1809, proven 20 Nov 1815 
(Pittsylvania Co., D&W 11, p.415).  He names his wife Susanna 
and gives son Cuthbird Price 220 acres where William then lived.  
He names his son-on-law William McDaniel.  He appoints sons 
Daniel Price, Maraday Price and Major Price executors.  An 
inventory of William’s estate was recorded on 13 Dec 1815 
(Pittsylvania Co. Accounts Current, 1812-1817, Book 5, p. 375). 
 
 Susannah, Daniel, Meredith and Major Price signed a deed dated 
18 Sep 1815 (or 13 Sep 1813) dividing what was loaned to her 
from William’s estate to be divided at her discretion upon her 
death (Pittsylvania Co., VA, Deed Book 21 or 27, p.9 or 39).  The 
deed states that Susannah and Daniel reside in Pittsylvania Co., 
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VA, and Marada and Major are “of the County of Caswell, North 
Carolina”.   She names as her children and William’s Sally Burton, 
Robert Price, Patsy McDaniel (deceased), Polly McDaniel 
(deceased), and Nancy Stokes (deceased), Betsy Perkins, and John 
Price. 
 
The following children and some of the information below are in 
Purse and Persons: 
(1) Sarah (Sally) Price  m. Walthall Burton 
 08 Jan 1754  

They married 13 Feb 1773 (recorded in Douglas Register).  
He was her 1st cousin, the son of William Allen Burton and 
Mary Walthall.  They moved to Chester Co., SC, by 1784, 
where Walthall purchased 400 acres from Sally’s uncle 
Daniel Price.  Walthall later sold this land they they moved 
to Stokes Co., NC, by 1796. She is named by her mother 
in the 1815 deed mentioned above. 

(2) Susannah Price   
 26 Mar 1756 

The will of Hutchins Burton, written and proven in 1763, 
named his daughter Susannah Price and her daughters 
Sarley, Susannah, and Elizabeth.   
There is some confusion here.  There is a marriage bond for 
a Susannah Price, daughter of William Price, to marry 
Drury Adkins dated 05 May 1805.  However, other internet 
sources list 9 children in that family, with birthdates from 
10 Sep 1807 – 1824.  This Susannah would have been age 
49 when she married, and age 68 when the last was born.  I 
am guessing that either this is the wrong Susannah Price or 
the children are misplaced and do not belong to this couple.  
Perhaps Drury’s wife Susannah was a daughter of this 
Susannah’s brother William.   

(3) Elizabeth (Betsy) Price    m. Joseph Perkins 
 13 May 1758 – Jan/Feb 1843       d. May 1814-13 Feb 1815 

They married 21 Dec 1775 (recorded in Douglas Register).  
She is named by her mother in the 1815 deed mentioned 
above. 
Joseph’s will was written 16 May 1814 and recorded in 
Louisa Co., VA, 13 Feb 1815 (WB 5, p. 543).   Elizabeth’s 
will was written 25 Jan 1840, with a codicil added 03 Jan 
1843, and recorded on 13 Feb 1843 in Louisa Co., VA (WB 
11, p. 33). 

(4) John Price   m. Mary Johnson 
 25 Mar 1760 – 1824       19 Apr 1763–24 Dec 1822 

They married July 1775 (another source has 03 Aug 1779, 
citing the Douglas Register) in Goochland Co., VA.  He is 



 6 

named by his mother in the 1815 deed mentioned above.  
John died in Logan Co., KY. 

(5) William Price    m. (1)  Susanna Cocke 
 02 Mar 1762          05 Aug 1764  
 They married March 1784 in Goochland Co., VA.        
     m.   (2)  Elizabeth Hudson 

They married Oct 1784 in Amelia Co., VA.  (Yes, P & P 
has both marriages in 1784.  Researcher David Galloway 
has the 2nd marriage on 06 Oct 1787)  She is named as a 
daughter of Christopher Hudson in his will written 04 Nov 
1788 and recorded 28 Feb 1789 (Amelia Co. WB 4, p. 
131).  In the marriage bonds she is named as Elizabeth 
Littlepage.  My guess is that she was 1st married to a 
Littlepage and that her maiden name was Hudson, so I will 
list her as a Hudson. 

(6) Cuthbert/Cutbird/Culberth Price  m.  Nancy Thompson 
 13 Jun 1764 

They married June 1788 in Pittsylvania Co., VA.  Cuthbird 
was given 220 acres in his father’s will written in 1809, 
proven in 1815.   

(7) Daniel Price           m.    Lucy Coleman 
 27 Aug 1766–23 Jan 1846     14 Aug 1772–06 Aug 1831 

The dates above are from a survey of Green Hill Cemetery 
in Danville, VA.  P & P has the dates 17 Aug 1766-23 Jan 
1846 and 14 Aug 1771-06 Aug 1831.  Daniel was named as 
an executor in his father’s will written in 1809, proven in 
1815.  Daniel and Lucy married Nov 1790 in Pittsylvania 
Co., VA.  Daniel’s will was written in 1845 and proven 16 
Feb 1846 in Pittsylvania Co., VA, WB 2, pp. 12-15. 

(8) Robert Price   m. Sally Church 
 06 Oct 1768 
 They married Sep 1788 in Pittsylvania Co., VA.  He is 
 named by his mother in the 1815 deed mentioned above. 
(9) Maraday/Meredith Price m.   Mary (Polly) McDaniel 
 01 Jun 1770 – 07 Feb 1817         1772 – 21 Oct 1857 

The birth dates above are from P & P, however, the dates of 
death are from a cemetery survey in Caswell Co., NC (P&P 
had only the years 1818 for Meredith and 1858 for Mary).  
Maraday was named as an executor in his father’s will 
written in 1809, proven in 1815.   
Meredith and Polly married 27 Dec 1791 in Pittsylvania 
Co., VA (P&P has the same date in 1795, as it is reported 
in Knorr’s Marriage Bonds book, but I have a copy of the 
actual marriage license as well as a deed executed in March 
1795 concerning the land’s of Mary’s mother and referring 
to Meredith and his wife Polly Price). 
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(10) Mary (Molly/Polly) Price m. William McDaniel 
 06 May 1772 – bef 1815 

They married 07 May 1797 in Pittsylvania Co., VA.  (P& P 
has birth date of 15 Mar 1774, which doesn’t make sense, 
given her sister’s birth date, also from P&P, so I am using 
the date I had found from other sources.  See the detail later 
in this paper).  She is named as deceased by her mother in 
the 1815 deed mentioned above.  William is named as a 
son-in-law in Polly’s father’s will written 1809 and proven 
in 1815. 

(11) Nancy Price   m. Silvanus Stokes 
 07 Mar 1774 (from P&P) 

They married Dec 1793 in Pittsylvania Co., VA.  (I have a 
birth date of 15 May 1774 and marriage date of 16 Dec 
1793.)  She is named as deceased by her mother in the 1815 
deed mentioned above. 

(12) Martha (Patsy) Price  m. Joel McDaniel 
 21 Jun 1776 (from P&P) 

They married Sep 1796 in Pittsylvania Co., VA.  (I have a 
birth date of 01 Jun 1776 and marriage date of 19 Sep 
1796.)  She is named as deceased by her mother in the 1815 
deed mentioned above. 

(13) Major Price   m. (1)  Sarah Waller 
 10 Oct 1779- 03 Mar 1829 (from P&P)  

Major was named as an executor in his father’s will written 
in 1809, proven in 1815.   P&P has a marriage bond date of 
12 May 1801 in Pittsylvania Co, with marriage on 14 May 
(and I have 19 May for the marriage).   

     m. (2)  Susan Lawson 
 They married 13 Oct 1803 in Halifax Co., VA. 
 
The following 2 children are not named in Family Bible cited for 
the other children, and have not been proven as descendants 
(although they are listed in Purse and Persons).  Another source 
that they might be daughters of this William’s son William, which 
makes more sense, so I put them there. 
(14) Joyce Price   m. William Soyars 
 They married Feb 1805 in Pittsylvania Co., VA. 
(15) Hannah Price   died unmarried 
 d. by 1816 

    
 c. Elizabeth Price  m. Samuel Shepherd 
   

On 18 Jul 1748, John gave 100 acres to Samuel Shepherd who 
married his daughter Elizabeth (Goochland Co. Deed Book 5, p. 
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448).  They were married by 1757 (Goochland Deed Book 7, p. 
151). 

 
3. Daniel Price 
 d. by 04 Apr 1720 
 Suit of Pew Price against John Price, heir at law of Daniel Price was 
 dismissed on 04 Apr 1720 (Henrico Co. minute Book 1719-24, p. 23). 
 
4. Pew (Pugh) Price  m. (1)  Sarah Thornton (abt 1724) 
 abt 1700 –abt 17 Apr 1775  (2)  Tabitha Barrow (abt 1733) 
      (3)  Jerusha Penick (Penix)  
            (21 Sep 1750 in Amelia Co., VA) 
 

His father deeded to him 120 acres on 01 Sep 1710, reserving a life 
interest.  After his father died, his mother and stepfather Hugh Ligon 
relinquished this interest on 07 Oct 1717 (Henrico Co. Wills & Deeds 
1710-14, p. 25; Deeds 1714-18, p. 195). 
 
Pugh’s will was written 20 Nov 1774 and proven 17 Apr 1775 in Prince 
Edward Co., VA (Will Book 1, p. 173).  Children names in his will are:  
Sarah, William, Pugh, Michal, Phoebe, Tabitha, Elizabeth, Charles, 
Fanny, Judith, Patty, John, Daniel, Josiah, James, and an as yet unborn 
child.  Jerusha’s will was recorded in Powhatan County in 1808. 
 
The names of Pew’s 1st 2 wives is not in Adventurers of Purse and Person, 
4th Edition, but his children are listed with each wife as follows (Register 
of the Family Bible of Mrs. Jerusha Price, Joseph D. Eggleston Papers, 
Virginia Historical Society): 
(by 1) a. Sarah Price 
 b. William Price   m. Mary Morton 

   (1) Anne Price m. William McDaniel 
    CHECK THIS OUT – other sources have assumed  
    Anne Smith, but have not found any proof 
    (a) Mary McDaniel   m.  Meredith Price 
  c. Mary Ann Price 
  d. Jane Price 
 (by 2) e. Pugh Price 
  f. Daniel Price (died young) 
  g. Michal Price 
  h. Phebe Price 
  i. John Price  (died young) 
  j. Tabitha Price  m. John Cox 
  k. Elizabeth Price 
 (by 3) l. Charles Price 
  m. Frances Price 
  n. Judith Price 
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  o. Jane Price 
  p. Martha Price 
  q. John Price 
  r. Daniel Price 
  s. Josiah Price 
  t. Williamson Price 
  u. James Price 
  v. Pugh Williamson Price  
 
5. Elizabeth/Eliza Price 
 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
 
 DESCENDANTS OF WILLIAM PRICE AND SUSANNA BURTON 
 
The names and dates of birth of these children are reportedly from a Bible in a book 
published by John Frederick Dorman. 
 
A. Sarah (Polly) Price   m. Walthall Burton 
 08 Jan 1754 -  

They married 13 Feb 1773 in Goochland Co, VA (recorded in Douglas Register).  
He was her 1st cousin, the son of William Allen Burton and Mary Walthall.  They 
moved to Chester Co., SC, by 1784, where Walthall purchased 400 acres from 
Sarah’s uncle Daniel Price.  Walthall later sold this land and they moved to 
Stokes Co., NC, by 1796, where she later died.  She is named by her mother in the 
1815 deed mentioned earlier. 

 
B. Susanna Price     
 26 Mar 1756 

The will of Hutchins Burton, written and proven in 1763, named his daughter 
Susannah Price and her daughters Sarley, Susannah, and Elizabeth.    

 
C. Elizabeth (Betsy) Price  m. Joseph Perkins 
 13 May 1758 – Jan/Feb 1843   abt 1754 – May 1814 to 13 Feb 1815 

They married 21 Dec 1775 in Goochland or Fluvanna Co., VA (recorded in 
Douglas Register).  She is named by her mother in the 1815 deed mentioned 
earlier.  Joseph’s will was written 16 May 1814 and recorded in Louisa Co., VA, 
13 Feb 1815 (WB 5, p. 543).   Elizabeth’s will was written 25 Jan 1840, with a 
codicil added 03 Jan 1843, and recorded on 13 Feb 1843 in Louisa Co., VA (WB 
11, p. 33). 

 
D. John Price    m. Mary Johnson 
 25 Mar 1760 – 06 Sep 1824   19 Apr 1763 – 24 Dec 1822  

They married 03 Aug 1779 in Goochland Co., VA (as recorded in the Douglas 
Register… another source has marriage bond dated 31 Jul 1779 in Goochland Co, 
VA, naming Isham Johnson as Mary’s guardian and with John’s father William 
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Price consenting to son’s marriage and David Johnson, Jr., as security).  John is 
named by his mother in the 1815 deed mentioned earlier.  Mary was the daughter 
of James Johnson and Rachel Haden.  August 1773, Isham Johnson undertakes 
the guardianship of the orphan children of James Johnson, Jr., deceased 
(Goochland Order Book 12, p. 336). 
 
Louisa Co., VA, Deed book has deed from William Price to son John Price dated 
03 Oct 1784.  John Price and William Price, Jr., witnessed a deed in Pittsylvania 
Co., VA, on 12 Dec 1799 (Deed Book 12, p. 47) 
 
John Price first appears on Logan Co., KY, tax records in 1808.  Tax records 
show that he owned no land until 1810, when he owned 200 acres on the Gasper 
and 350 acres in Warren Co., KY.  In 1811, he had 250 acres on the Gasper (from 
Long/Slaughter), 450 acres on Muddy River.  In 1812, there are 415 acres on the 
Gasper plus the 250 (Long/Slaughter). 
 
John Price had purchased 250 acres for $1,000 in Logan Co., KY, on the waters 
of the Gasper (military survey for Philip Slaughter, assignee of Reuben Long), on 
01 Mar 1810 (Logan Co, Deed Book C, p. 96).  On 28 Mar 1814, John Price, Sr., 
and wife Mary sold 125 acres on waters of the Gasper to Reuben Rogers for $750 
(Deed Book D, p. 89).  On 28 Mar 1814, John Price, Sr., and wife Mary sold 125 
acres on waters of the Gasper to Joseph Sawyers for $700 (Deed Book D, p. 90). 
 
His will is recorded in Logan Co., KY, Will Book C, p. 102.  It was written 16 
Sep 1820, proven 06 Sep 1824.  It names his wife Mary Johnson Price and 
children John (deceased, and his children William and Mary Ann Price), Thomas 
(land after his wife dies), Ann Johnson, Daniel, David, Major, Sucky Duncan, and 
Polly Price. 
 
The division of the slaves of John Price dec’d is recorded in Will Book C, p. 128.  
It is dated 09 Nov 1824, recorded 06 Dec 1824, and names Major J. Price, David 
Price, Daniel Price, Nancy Johnson, William Duncan, Joel Price, and Thomas 
Price.  The full list of children below is quoted online by a researcher citing 
reprinted clippings in the Kentucky Explorer, vo. 10, No. 5, Oct 1995, p. 95. 
1. Ann/Nancy Price    m. Thomas Johnson 
 22 Sep 1780 – aft 1850   d. Nov 1819 

They married 25 Feb 1799 in Louisa Co., VA.  He was the son of James 
Johnson and Sarah Tenham.  Thomas Johnson died intestate.  On 13 Mar 
1834, heirs of Thomas Johnson estate are listed in reference to sale of 
Listed are Peyton M. Lyon and wife Elizabeth, Samuel S. Perkins and 
wife Mary P., Nancy Johnson (widow), Thomas J. and James G. (sons), 
Louisa J. and Margaret (daughters), William C. Price and wife Sarah, 
William D. Price and wife Susan, John P. (son), William L. Johnson and 
wife Nancy. 
a.  Sarah (Sally) Johnson  m. William   C. Price 
b.  Nancy Johnson   m. William L. Johnson 
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c.  John P. Johnson    
d.  Susannah Johnson   m. William D. Price 
e.  Elizabeth Johnson   m. Peyton M. Lyon 
f.  Thomas Jefferson Johnson  m. Rebecca Rogers 

They married 22 April 1833 in Logan County, Kentucky.  Rebeccah 
was born about 1810 in Pittsylvania Co., VA, the daughter of 
Hannah/Harriet Price and Reuben Rogers. 

g.  Margaret A. Johnson 
h.  Mary Pauline Johnson  m. Samuel S. Perkins 
i.  Louisa J. Johnson 
j.  James G. Johnson   m. Mary 
 

2. William Price     m. Anna (Nancy) Haywood 
19 Oct 1782 – 19 Nov 1819 
They married 11 Aug 1801 in Louisa Co., VA.  His birth is recorded in 
Douglas Register, but he is not in father’s will.  On 28 Dec 1819, the 
appraisement of the estate of William Price, dec’d, was entered into the 
court records by the administrator William Duncan (Logan Co., KY, Will 
Book B, p. 276).  The division of slaves of the estate of William Price was 
recorded on 15 June 1820, with half going to John Price, Sr., and half to 
William’s widow Nancy (Logan Co. Deed Book M, p. 160). 

 
3. James Price  
 27 Dec 1785 (recorded in Douglas Register, but not in father’s will) 
 
4. Daniel L. Price   m. Sarah Perkins 
 12 Oct 1786 – 03 Oct 1844   13 June 1786 – 07 Oct 1844 

They married 30 Oct 1804 in Louisa Co., VA.  Sarah was the daughter of 
Stephen Perkins and Sarah (Sally) Bowles.  Daniel’s date of birth was 
recorded in Douglas Register.  On 23 Sep 1816 Daniel Price bought 375 
acres on Gaspers River (Warren Co., KY, Deed Book H, p. 98).  The deed 
was witnessed by Thomas Bowles. 
a.  James J. Price 
b.  Mary F. Price  m. Stephen Perkins Bowles 
     25 Jul 1808 – 13 Jan 1886  28 May 1801 – Sep 1865 

They married 10 Oct 1835 in Warren Co., KY.  They were both born 
in VA.  Stephen was the son of John Bowles and Elizabeth Perkins.  
The 1840 Census of Logan Co., KY, lists a Stephen P. Boles.  The 
1850 Census list Stephen P. Bowles (50, born in VA), wife Mary (40, 
born in KY), children Sarah E. (13), Mary F. (9), William T. (8), 
Henry C. (7), Benjamin H. (4), and Emaliza (2).   The 1860 Census of 
Logan Co., KY, lists Stephen P. Bowles (age 60),  wife Mary (50), 
children Thomas (19), Henry (15), Ann (12), Nancy (10), and Perkins 
(4).   
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Stephen’s will was written 18 Sep 1864 and recorded 25 Sep 1865.  He 
names wife Mary, and daughters Sarah E. Carrington, and Mary Y. 
Maxwell. 
Stephen P. Bowles and wife Mary F. Bowles are buried in “the old 
Gasper River Cemetery”.  Also in that cemetery are their daughter 
Nancy D. Bowles (05 May 1852 – 15 Nov 1866), Thomas W. Bowles 
(08 Feb 1842 – 26 Jul 1901) and his wife Mary C. Bowles (07 Aug 
1843 – 28 Jul 1908). 

c. Elizabeth Price 
d.  William Price 
e.  Thomas Price  m. Narcissa Cox 
    July 1822 – aft 1903  Oct 1826 

They married 18 Dec 1845 in Sumter Co., TN.  She was born in Warren 
Co., KY, daughter of Jackson M. Cox and Sarah Johnson.  Thomas died 
in Warren Co., KY. 

f.  Benjamin Price 
g.  Joseph K. Price 
h.  Isabel Price   m. John S. Jones 
i.  Sarah Price   m. Edmund J. Smith 
 

5. John Price    m. Caroline Pope Duval 
 09 Nov 1788 -  bef Sep 1816    11 July 1791 – 09 Apr 1881 

They married 12 Oct 1812 in Logan Co., KY.  She was the daughter of 
Claiborne Duval and Elizabeth Pope.  After John died, Caroline married 
Thomas Taylor.  John’s will was written Nov 1815 and proven 16 Sep 
1816 (On ancestry.com, Logan Co., KY, Will Index has his probate date 
as 19 Aug 1816).  Guardian settlement was made 05 Jul 1830 and 
recorded 04 Oct 1830 (Logan Co. will Book D, p. 352).  Thomas W. 
Taylor was guardian for William and Mary Ann Price, infant orphans of 
John Price, dec’d. 

 a. William Claiborne Price 
 b. Mary Ann Price  m. John Calvin Travis 
  16 Feb 1815 – 08 Feb 1872 1808 – 1880 
  They married 19 Apr 1839 and later moved to Simpson Co., KY. 
 
6. David Price 
7. Major J. Price 
 
8. Susan/Susanna (Sucky) Price  m. William T. Duncan 
 15 June 1795 – 01 Aug 1865   13 Jan 1788 – 06 Jan 1856 

They married 02 Nov 1809 in Logan Co., KY.  He was the son of William 
Duncan and Mary Albert Williams.  His will was written Oct 1853 and 
proven 10 Jan 1856.  They had 10 children. 

 
9. Mary J. (Polly) Price   m. Joel McDaniel Price 
 24 Sep 1797     1793 – bef 03 Dec 1849 
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They married 01 Mar 1817 in Logan Co., KY, where they settled. He was 
Polly’s 1st cousin, the son of her uncle Meredith Price and Polly McDaniel 
of Caswell Co., NC (KY Historical Society GMG Blue Book #D).  He was 
deceased by the date of his mother’s will, 03 Dec 1849.  
a. William Williamson (Hickory) Price 
b. James Joel Price 
c. Mary Ann Price 
d. Thomas Pinkney Price 
e. John Meredith Price 
f. Susan Ann Price 
g. Elizabeth Price 

 
 10.  Meredith Price (not in father’s will) 
 24 Nov 1799 
11. Thomas Price 

 12. Sarah Price (not in father’s will) 
 
E. William Price    m. (1)  Susannah Cocke 
 02 Mar 1762                  05 Aug 1764 - bef 1787 

They married 15 Mar 1784 in Goochland or Pittsylvania Co., VA.  In 1789, he 
was living in Louisa Co., VA.  An internet source places these 3 daughters here, 
and that makes sense to me.  I’m not sure which wife I would put them with, 
however. 

 1. Susannah Price  m. Drury Adkins 
       abt 1786  

There is a marriage bond for a Susannah Price, daughter of William Price, 
to marry Drury Adkins dated 05 May 1805.  I am guessing that is the 
correct Susannah Price.  Drury Adkins was in Dickson Co., TN, by 1820.  
The 1850 Census lists a Drewry Adkins (age 66, born in VA) in the house 
with Edward Adkins (32, born in TN), and James Adkins (30, born in 
TN). 
a.  Abraham (Abram) Adkins 
     10 Sep 1807 in Houston Co., TN 
b.  William (Billy) Thomas Adkins 
      1810 in Stewart Co., TN 
c.  Joseph W. Adkins 
     06 Apr 1812 in Dickson Co., TN 
d.  Nancy Letitia Adkins 
      04 May 1814 – 04 June 1903 
e.  Edward D. Adkins 
     03 Sep 1818 – 11 Sep 1895 
f.  James Morgan Adkins 
     1820 - 1883 
g.  Christopher Columbus Adkins 
      1821 
h.  Martha J. Adkins 
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      1823 - 1859 
i.  Mary Adkins 
     1824 - 1835 
 

2. Hannah/Harriet Price   m. Reuben Rogers 
 d. by 1816     d. bef 06 Aug 1830 

They married 23 Aug 1798 in Pittsylvania Co., VA.  On 06 Aug 1830 
heirs of Reuben Rogers, dec’d, made deed to purchasers Betsy and Nancy 
Rogers.  Heirs listed were Joseph Rogers, Susan Rogers and her husband 
John Price, Patsy Rogers, William Rogers, George Rogers, Rebecca 
Rogers, and Mary Ann Rogers. Betsy and Nancy Rogers were the 
purchasers for $120. 125 acres on waters of the Gasper. Rec. 22 Sep 1830 
(Logan Co DB Q, p.335). 

 
3. Joyce Price   m. William Soyars 
 They married Feb 1805 in Pittsylvania Co., VA. 

   
 William Price    m. (2)  Elizabeth Hudson  

They married 06 Oct 1787 in Amelia Co., VA.  ( P & P has both marriages in 
1784.  Researcher David Galloway has the 2nd marriage on 06 Oct 1787). The 
marriage record names her as Littlepage, but she is named as a daughter in the 
will of Christopher Hudson in his will written 04 Nov 1788 and recorded 28 Feb 
1789 (Amelia Co. WB 4, p. 131).  My guess is that she was 1st married to a 
Littlepage and that her maiden name was Hudson, so I will list her as a Hudson. 
 

  
F. Cutburd Price    m. Nancy Thompson 
 13 Jun 1764 

 
They married 15 Jun 1788 in Pittsylvania Co., VA.  She was the daughter of 
Samuel Thompson and Ann Jennings (who married in 1752).  Samuel Thompson 
died in Amelia Co., VA, in 1772.  Cuthbird was given 220 acres in his father’s 
will written in 1809, proven in 1815.  In addition to the 1st 4 children below, 
Melvin Vernon via an internet posting, names a 6th child, Martha J. Price.  All of 
the information on her line is from Melvin Vernon, whose wife is descended from 
Martha. 

 1. Hutchins B. Price 
In Feb 1844, Cutbird Price gave to his son Hutchings B. Price the land on 
which Cutbird lived.  I think I saw a Hutchins Price married Frances J. 
Rice on 25 Sep 1850?? in Pittsylvania Co., VA. 

 2. John A. Price 
 3. William C. Price   m. (1)  Sarah (Sally) Johnson 
  1801 – 05 Aug 1869          1802 – bef Oct 1864 

They married 01 Jul 1820 in Logan Co., KY.  She was born in VA, 
daughter of Thomas Johnson and Ann (Nancy) Price.  She was widow of 
John C. Pope whose will was written 21 Nov 1819 and proven 17 Mar 
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1820.  On 03 June 1835, William and Nancy Johnson sold to William T. 
Duncan, trustee for Sarah Price, wife of William C. Price, and her children 
Sarah Ann & Margret, 95 acres on the Muddy River. The deed is signed 
by William Johnson, Nancy J. Johnson, Wm T. Duncan, William C. Price 
(X), Sarah Price (Logan Deed book V, recorded 09 Feb 1837)  [Sarah 
Johnson had a sister, Nancy Johnson, who married William L. Johnson, 
and a William C. Price is buried in the William L. Johnson cemetery in 
Logan Co., KY, so I think this is that William and Nancy Johnson.] 
The 1860 Census of Logan Co., KY, listed William C. Price (age 60) and 
wife Sarah (age 54), both born in VA, and Josephine Price (age 17, born in 
KY).  No children were living with them in the 1850 census, so it is not 
clear who Josephine Price is. 

  William Price    m.  (2) Sarah E.Watkins 
  They married 06 Oct 1864 in Logan Co., KY. 
 4. Thompson Price 

I’m wondering if he is the Thompson Price who married Lucy Coleman, 
daughter of Chloe McDaniel on 21 Sep 1819.  There is mention of a 
Thompson Price in the mixed probate records of Pittsylvania Co., VA, 
1821-1824 (check to see what that was for). 

5. Susanna Price   m. Hezekiah Smith 
      1787 – abt 1836 

They married 07 Sep 1818 in Pittsylvania Co., VA.  Bondsman was 
Thompson Price, and Cutbird Price gave his consent.  Hezekiah was the 
son of Hezekiah Smith and Sally Leftwich. 
In May 1824, Cutbird Price gives to granddaughter Verlina C. J. Smith a 
slave (Pittsylvania Co., VA, Deed Book, 1767-1850).  Hezekiah Smith Sr. 
granted to granddaughter Verlina C. J. Smith two young negroes on 18 
Aug 1823 (DB 25, p. 457). 
From the Court records reported regarding Verlina C. J. Smith, it appears 
that her father Hezekiah Smith died about 1836 while she was still an 
underage child.  Joel L. Smith (brother of her father Hezekiah) was 
appointed guardian of Verlina C. J. Smith, orphan of Hezekiah Smith on 
15 Feb 1836 (CHY 33, p. 62).  She was “in the room of Washington T. 
Price”. 
(1) Verlina C. J. Smith  m. Robert M. Tarpley 

Marriage bond for Verlina C. J. Smith in Pittsylvania Co., VA, 
dated 16 Sep 1840.  Bondsman was Amariah A. Smith; father 
listed as Hezekiah Smith. (Joel L. Smith died on 03 Jan 1839, and 
Amariah Alvis Smith was his eldest son.) 

6. Martha J. Price   m. George W. Harper 
The Astin information below is from a family paper on the Astins written 
my Jay and Judy Merricks in 2003. 

 a. Mary A.S. Harper m. Wilson James Astin 
  18 Jan 1822   17 Aug 1819 – 1898 

They married 14 Sep 1850 in Pittsylvania Co., VA. 
 b. Nancy Harper  m. John G. Adkerson 
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 c. Irena Harper 
 d. George W. Harper m. Elizabeth (Betty) Robertson 
  1832 – 1885   1840 - 1915 
  (1)  Ella Lee Harper m. Samuel Robertson Harper 
 e. Elvira Harper  m. William George Astin 
  24 Aug 1833 – 15 Mar 1914 09 Jul 1824 – 25 Jan 1887 

They married 10 Jan 1857 in Pittsylvania Co., VA.   
  (1)  James Hannibal Astin never married 
         11 Jan 1858 – 14 Oct 1930 
  (2)  William George Astin 
         23 Nov 1860 – 02 Feb 1932 
  (3)  Sarah (Sally) Ann Astin 
         06 Aug 1863 - 1946 
  (4)  John Morgan Astin m.  Mary Ann Eliza McKinney 
         07 Apr 1867 – 19 Jan 1961    01 Jul 1885 – 13 Feb 1954 

They married 15 Dec 1902 in Pittsylvania Co., VA.  She was 
the daughter of Thomas McKinney and Araminta Lanier.  They 
are buried in Highland Burial Park in Danville. 

  (5)  Albert Sidney Astin m.  (1)  Nannie P. McKinney 
         07 Sep 1870 – 11 Jan 1949 d. 16 Mar 1902 

They married in Dec 1894.  She was the daughter of Thomas 
McKinney and Araminta Lanier. 
(a)  Sally Ethel Astin 
 13 Mar 1897 – 25 Jun 1897 
(b)  Mamie Kate Astin 
 21 Aug 1898 – 05 Oct 1931 
(c)  William Thomas Astin 
 07 Apr 1900 – 22 Aug 1900 
(d)  Ira Astin 
 10 Mar 1902 – 16 Dec 1978 

            (2)  Maymie Waite Powell 
       23 Jun 1883 – 16 Jan 1945 

They married 16 Dec 1903 in Caswell Co., NC.  She was the 
daughter of James Powell and Susan McKinney.   
(e)  Susan Emerson (Emma) Astin      m.  Charles Smith Fulton 
 09 Aug 1904 – 10 May 1998        10 Nov 1897 – Aug 1953 

They married 15 Oct 1923.  He was the son of Charles 
Abner Fulton and his 2nd wife Martha Anne Walton. 

(f)  Elvira Astin   m. 
 08 Mar 1906 – 21 May 1988 
(g)  James Powell Astin 
(h)  Claude Swanson Astin 
(i)  Mary Wilson (Bea) Astin 
(j)  Sallie Ann Astin 
(k)  Margaret Elizabeth Astin 
(l)  Albert Sidney Astin 
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(m)  Charles Wesley Astin 
(n)  Virginia Caroline Astin   

 f. William Hutchings Harper m. Labinda Frances Robertson 
  1838 – 1875    1843 - 1924 
  (1)  Charles Wilmer Harper m. Mary Emma Pollok 
  (2)   Martha Alice Harper m. Singleton Belt Robertson 
  (3)  Lillie E. Harper  m. Joseph H. Blair 
         1865 – 1901   1857 - 1935 
  (4)  John Hutchings Harper m. Mary Wilmoth (Harvey?) 
         1867 – 1933   1869 - 1940 
         (a)  Annie Mae Harper m. Reuben Howe Coleman 
     1896         17 Oct 1894 – March 1975 

They married 20 Oct 1920.  He was the son of William 
Robert Coleman and his 2nd wife Ella H. Comer.  Annie 
Mae and Reuben Howe had no children.   

         (b)  Julian Lee Harper m.  Lois Audrey 
     1897 - 1982 
         (c)  Birdie Beatrice Harper   m. George Daniel (Bud) Coleman 
     1899 – 06 Nov 1968            27 Jul 1886 – 03 Jan 1969 

They married 04 Nov 1926 in Richmond, VA.   He was 
the son of Suiter Monroe Coleman and Isabelle D. 
Goodson.  His obituary was in the Bee on 03 Jan 1969, 
stating that he died on Thursday.  It names his wife, her 
date of death, and surviving children, George D. Coleman 
and Mrs. Clyde Gauldin, both of Richmond, VA.  
Birdie’s obituary in the Bee on 07 Nov 1968named her 
parents John Hutchings Harper and Mary Wilmoth. 

     (i)  Mary Jane Coleman m.  Clyde Neal Gauldin 
           1930          1926 
      (ii)  George Daniel Coleman   m.  Patricia Harrell 
              1934 - 1995 
         (d)  Richard Overton Harper m.  Florence Robyn Waldo 
     1900 – 1975         1904 
   (i)  Nita Robyn Harper m.  John Gilbert McElreath 
         1932          1929 
   (ii)  Jean Carol Harper  m.  Calvin Melvin Vernon 
          1935          1930 
   (iii)  Barbara Waldo Harper m.  Owen Townes Carter 
           1942          1940 
  

 
G. Daniel Price    m. Lucy Coleman 
 27 Aug 1766 – 23 Jan 1846   14 Aug 1772 – 06 Aug 1831 
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They married 26 Nov 1790 in Pittsylvania Co., VA.  She was the daughter of 
Stephen Coleman and Sarah Watson.  Daniel was named as an executor in his 
father’s will written in 1809, proven in 1815.   
 
Daniel and Lucy are buried in Green Hill Cemetery in Danville, VA.  The dates 
above were obtained from a survey of that cemetery taken 01 Oct 1937 by Mabel 
Moses and recorded in the Digital Collection of the Library of Virginia (found at 
http://files.usgwarchives.org/va/danville/cemeteries/greenhill.txt in 2008).  P & P 
has the dates 17 Aug 1766-23 Jan 1846 and 14 Aug 1771-06 Aug 1831.   
 
Daniel’s will was written in 1845 and proven in Pittsylvania Co., VA, on 16 Feb 
1846 (WB 2, p. 12-15).  He names children William A. Price (deceased), Sally 
Paxton, Stephen Price, Ann Harper, and Betsy Perkins.  The gift to Betsy Perkins 
was for her use and at her death to be divided between her children and the 
children of her deceased son Daniel Perkins. 
1. William A. Price 

He was deceased in his father’s will proven in Feb 1846.  In Nov 1825 
Daniel Price gave to William Allen Price some land, no relationship 
stated.  Is this the William Price who married Ann S. Coleman in 1826 and 
died in 1827?  

 2. Sarah G. (Sally) Price  m. John W. Paxton 
  30 Sep 1793 – 15 May 1855 

They married 20 Jan 1815 in Pittsylvania Co., VA.  In March 1835, Daniel 
Price gave to John W. Paxton some land, no relationship stated.  The 
gravestone of “Sarah G., wife of John W. Paxton” is noted in the 
Cemetery Survey mentioned above (the survey has her birth year as 1893, 
which I think is a typo and should perhaps be 1793, which I have written).  
The survey adds that the stone says “This stone is erected by her 
affectionate husband.” 

 3. Stephen Coleman Price m. Lydia Anna Harper 
 14 May 1806 – 06 Jun 1845  24 Feb 1809 

They married 21 Sep 1826 in Albemarle Co, VA.  The dates for Stephen 
are from a gravestone in the cemetery with his parents for a Stephen C. 
Price (I do not know that it is this Stephen.)  Lydia was the daughter of 
Charles “Colonel” Harper and his 2nd wife Lucy Smither.  Colonel Harper 
was born in Philadelphia, PA, and moved his family 1st to Culpeper, VA, 
and then on to Spring Hill Place in Ivy, Albemarle, VA.   Lydia Anna 
Harper Price married (2) Meriwether Anderson about 1844 in Albemarle 
Co., VA. 

          a. Charles Harper Price m. (1)  Alice Wood 
  abt 1830           

They married 24 Aug 1852 in Albemarle Co., VA.  Alice was the 
daughter of Benjamin Wood and Jane Lewis Anderson (whose mother 
was Jane Meriwether Lewis, sister of the famous Meriwether Lewis). 

  (1) Benjamin Wood Price 
        13 June 1853 
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  (2)  Jane Lewis Price 
        1855 
  (3)  Lydia Harper Price m. Frederick Freeman Bainbridge 
        1857 
  (4)  Lucy Price  m. Albert R. Wilson 
         10 Feb 1859 – 06 June 1944 

Her information is from her death certificate, reported by Lewis H. 
Wilson.  Lucy was born in Meechams River, VA, and died in 
Greensboro, NC.  She is buried in Green Hill cemetery in 
Greensboro. 
(a)  Price Wilson 
(b) Lydia Wilson 
(c) Albert Wilson 
(d) Lewis Wilson 
(e) Jesse Wilson 
(f) Alice Wilson 

  (5)  Maury Price 
  (6)  Meriwether Lewis Price      m.   Hester Maloney 
         1863 
         (a) Charles Harper Price 
               18 Mar 1904 
  (7)  Charles Harper Price m. Anna Euker 
         1866   
  Charles Harper Price m.  (2)  Sarah Woods 
  They married about 1873.         d. 02 Apr 1919 
  (8)  Gertrude Price 
         1875 
  (9)  James Woods Price 
         1877 
        b. Daniel Price 
  1834  
 4. Ann Price    m. Charles Bennet Harper 

They married 25 Mar 1823 in Pittsylvania Co., VA.  He was the brother of 
Lydia Anna Harper who married Ann’s brother Stephen C. Price (above).   
a.   George Smither Coleman Harper  m.  Margaret Sharp 
      13 May 1824 – 17 Nov 1863 

They married about 1848. 
(1)  Annie Price Harper 
(2)  Harriet Vance Harper 
 17 Sep 1850 – 21 Sep 1877 
 She was born in MO, and died in Texas. 
(3)  Lucy Coleman Harper 
 She was a Methodist missionary to “old Mexico” in 1890. 
(4)  Charles Jacob Harper 
(5)  Sallie Smither Harper 
 11 Apr 1857 – 29 Jan 1940 
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 She was born in Texas and died in Pasadena, CA. 
(6) Samuel George Harper 

b.   Lydia Jane (Janie) Harper 
c.  Charles Daniel Harper 
d.  Lucy Harper 
e.  Sallie Harper 

 5. Elizabeth (Betsy) Price  m. Joseph Perkins 
  They married 04 Dec 1815 in Pittsylvania Co., VA. 
  a.  Daniel Perkins 

He is named as a grandson, son of Betsy Perkins, in Daniel Price’s will 
proven in Feb 1846. 

  b.  Mary Ann Perkins   m. Elisha Ford Keen 
     1827 – 1885 (or 1886, age 55?)       25 Jan 1825 – 08 Dec 1868  

They were married 25 Oct 1844 in Pittsylvania Co., VA; surety 
William W. Keen.  He was the son of John Keen and Nancy Witcher.  
Mary Ann and Elisha are grandparents of Nancy Witcher Langhorne, 
who became Lady Astor.  

 
Elisha Ford Keen served in the Virginia House of Delegates from 
1857-1861.  He was in the Senate 1863-1867.  His father, John Keen 
had served in the House of Delegates from 1839-1843.  His uncle 
Vincent Witcher had served in the House of Delegates from 1823-
1829, 1830-1833, 1834-1838, 1843-1845, then he was in the Virginia 
Senate 1845-1849, back to House of Delegates 1850-1851, then back 
to Senate 1852-1854. 

 
They are buried at Cottage Hill.  Cemetery records of Pittsylvania Co. 
give the following directions:  Take 58 West, turn right on Rt. 869, the 
left on Rt. 878, then go ¼ mile to a dirt road on the right.  Follow that 
road to an old white house.  The cemetery is behind the house inside a 
cement wall.  (In 2007, Hartwell Hylton said the house is no longer 
there, and he’s not sure you can find the cemetery anymore.)   

 
Elisha’s gravestone gives his dates above and reads “Elisha F. Keen 
our father”.  He raised his nephew Elisha Keen Jones, who was age 5 
when his mother Bettie Ann Keen died.  Elisha F. Keen left Cottage 
Hill to his nephew Elisha K. Jones. 

       (1) Elizabeth Frances (Bettie) Keen m.  William Henry Jones 
  1846 
       (2) Nancy Witcher Keen   m.  Chiswell Langhorne 
  1848 
       (3) Mary Emma Keen   m.  John Howard 

   1850 
 

In above-mentioned survey of Green Hill Cemetery with Daniel, Lucy, and their 
daughter Sally Paxton are several other Prices who died prior to the 1846 probate 
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of Daniel’s will (I’m not sure when the will was written).  Perhaps these are other 
children of Daniel and Lucy: 
6. John Price 
 18 Jul 1798 – 16 Jan 1843 
7. Stephen C. Price   (perhaps this is the Stephen # 3 above… check date of 
 will) 
 14 May 1806 – 06 Jun 1845 
8. George P. Price 
 31 May 1813 – 01 Oct 1841 

 
H. Robert Price     m. Sally Church 
 06 Oct 1768 – aft. 18 Sep 1815 

They married 05 Sep 1788 in Pittsylvania Co., VA.  She was the daughter of 
Jonathan Church.  Robert is named by his mother in the 1815 deed mentioned 
above.   
 
On 08 Nov 1803, Robert Price and wife Sarah sold 180 acres to Peter Wilson 
(Pittsylvania Co., VA, Deed Book 13, p. 510, proved by witnesses on 19 Dec 
1803).  On 16 Jan 1804, the 3rd witness proved the sale of 187 acres from 
Jonathan M. Church Senr to Robert Price that took place in 1801 and was proven 
by 2 witnesses on 20 Jul 1801.   
 
All of the children named below were born in Pittsylvania Co., VA. 
1. James Price 
 abt 1790 
2. Elizabeth W. Price   m. Meredith Wilkerson 
 25 Mar 1795 – 05 Feb 1881 

They married 30 Nov 1815 in Logan Co., KY. 
3. Mary Price    m. Joseph Robinson 
 abt 1797 

They married 31 Aug 1818 in Warren Co., KY.  
4. John Price    m. Matilda Reaves 
 abt 1799 

They married 11 Sep 1821 in Warren Co., KY.  
5. Sarah Price    m. Isaac Gray 
 abt 1800 

They married 07 Mar 1822 in Warren Co., KY. 
6. Margaret Price    m. William Gray 
 abt 1801 
 They married 18 Apr 1822 in Warren Co., KY. 
7. Jonathan Church Price  m. (1)  Matilda L. Wright 
 abt 1802 

  They married 12 Sep 1829 in Logan Co., KY. 
  Jonathan C. Price   m. (2)  Isabella 
  They married about 1836. 
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I. Meredith/Maraday Price   m. Mary (Polly) McDaniel 
 01 Jun 1770 – May 1816    abt 1772 – 21 Oct 1857 
 

They married 27 Dec 1791 in Pittsylvania Co., VA (Index shows 1795, but actual 
bond is 1791).  She was the daughter of William McDaniel and Anne (Smith, we 
think).  Her brother Joel McDaniel married Meredith’s sister Martha (Patsy) 
Price.  In the 1850 Census Mary is living with her daughter Susan Burton Price 
(m. Harrison) and is shown to be age 78, born in VA. 
 
Mary was born in Halifax Co., VA; Meredith was born in Pittsylvania Co., VA.  
They were living in Caswell Co., NC, by Apr 1798.  A deed in Pittsylvania Deed 
Book 10, p. 175, dated 09 Mar 1795, refers to Meredith Price and Polly his wife.  
It refers to part of Mrs. Ann McDaniel’s survey and is signed by Marday Price 
and Polly Price. 
 
Property of Meredith Price, dec’d, was sold on 07 Feb 1817 as recorded in 
Caswell Co. Will Book H, April Court 1817, p. 35.  The inventory of property is 
listed in the same book, p. 37. 
 
The division of Meredith’s lands is in Deed Book S, p. 173-175 (dated 21 Mar 
1817).  It names Pinkney Price, Polly Price, Washington Price, David Price, 
Major Price, Meredith Price, Susannah Price, Joel Price, Addison Price, Nancy 
Price, John Price, and states that William W. Price relinquishes all claim to said 
lands.   
 
Meredith’s estate settlement is on record in Caswell Co., NC, Deed Book S, p. 
246 (supposedly provides full names of James Addison and George Washington 
Price).   
 
The division of negroes belonging to the estate of Meredith Price was recorded in 
January Court 1818 (Will Book H, p. 120).  Legatees were:  Joel Price, Mrs. 
Price, Susannah, John, Polly, Daniel, Meredith, Nancy, Addison, Pinckney, 
Major, William W., and Washington Price (by Elijah Withers, Dudley Gatewood, 
Benj. C. West, and William Pennick). 
 
Mary’s will is recorded in Caswell Co., NC, Will Book R, p. 592 (written 03 Dec 
1849; proven Jan 1858); it names children Joel M, Price (deceased), son Meredith 
Price (deceased), Major A., John S., Daniel S., George W., James A., Susan B. 
Harrison, Ann S. Nunly, and Mary M. McDaniel (and husband John).  Witnesses 
were Josiah Blair, Ann M. Blair, Wm. W. Price, and Geo. W. Price.   
 
They are buried in Caswell Co., NC, at the Janie Mahan farm on Shady Grove 
Road near Gatewood and Rt. 86 between Yanceyville, NC, and Danville, VA.   A 
survey of the family cemetery was recorded by J. Burch Blaylock on 28 Dec 1957 
and is indexed by the Caswell County Cemetery Census (found at this web 
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address in 2008  http://cemeterycensus.com/nc/casw/cem196.htm  ).  The survey 
reports that his gravestone has Meredith’s death in May 1816. 
 
The children of Meredith Price and Mary (Polly) McDaniel are: 
1. Joel McDaniel Price 
 1793 
2. William Williamson Price 
 1795 
3. Meredith Price 
 1797 
4. Major Andrew Price    
 01 Oct 1800 
5. John Smith Price    
 1803 
6. Susannah Burton Price   
 27 Jan 1805 
7. Nancy (Ann) S. Price    
 1806  
8. Daniel Smith Price    
 04 Nov 1809 
9. Mary M. (Polly) Price    
 26 Sep1811 
10. Thomas Pinckney Price 
 14 Mar 1814  
11. James Addison Price    
 10 Jan 1816 
12. George Washington Price   
 10 Jan 1816 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
1. Joel McDaniel Price   m. Mary Johnson (Polly) Price 
 1793 – bef 03 Dec 1849   24 Sep 1797 

They married 01 Mar 1817 in Logan Co., KY (internet source cites Logan 
Co., KY, marriage records).  She was Joel’s 1st cousin, the daughter of his 
uncle John Price and Mary Johnson.  Polly’s father John first appears on 
the tax records of Logan Co., KY in 1808.  Joel died in Logan Co, and he 
is named as deceased in his mother’s will written 03 Dec 1849. 
a. William Williamson (Hickory) Price 
b. James Joel Price 
c. Mary Ann Price 
d. Thomas Pinkney Price 
e. John Meredith Price 
f. Susan Ann Price 
g. Elizabeth (or Eliza G.) Price 
 

2. William Williamson Price  m. Susannah B. Stokes 
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 1795 – by July1860    abt 1796 – 1864 
 

They married 25 Sep 1814 in Caswell Co., NC.  She was William’s 1st 
cousin, the daughter of Sylvanus Stokes and Nancy Price (William’s aunt).  
The 1850 Census of Caswell Co. shows that William was age 58, born in 
VA.  In his house were his wife Susan B. (age 54, b. in Caswell, NC), 
along with Susan C., age 15, Martha A., age 12, and Araminta Ferrell, age 
18 (all born in Caswell, NC).  He was living next door to his sister Susan 
B. Price (m. Harrison) with whom his mother, Mary McDaniel (m. Price) 
lived. 
 
His will was written 01 Jul 1857, a codicil added 13 Aug 1859, and the 
will proven in Caswell Co., NC, in July 1860 (Will Book S, p. 282).  
Caswell Co. Mortality Schedule for 1860 records his death in May 1860, 
and that he died of paralysis at age 65. 
 
His will names his brothers George W. Price, James A. Price, Daniel S. 
Price, Major A. Price, John S. Price, deceased brothers Joel M. Price and 
Meredith Price, deceased sister Susan B. Harrison, sisters Nancy Nunnally 
and Mary McDaniel (and her sons James and Joel McDaniel).  The codicil 
was written after Mary McDaniel and her son Joel had died, and names 
Joel’s son John McDaniel.  He also names nephew Hiram M. Price and 
Susan C. Chandler (who is not to be liable for her husband’s debts).  He 
adds that his wife Susanna has her own inheritance that is to go to Martha 
A. Price, who was Martha A. Blackard and is now Martha A. Deje???(I 
couldn’t read).   
 
Susan C. Price married James C. Chandler 10 Jul 1852 in Caswell Co., 
NC.  I think she was William’s niece, daughter of his brother Meredith.  
Meredith’s mother-in-law named a granddaughter Susan C. Price in her 
will (see Meredith’s family below). 
 
Wife Susannah’s will is recorded in Caswell Co., NC, Will Book T, p. 63, 
July Court 1864 (I didn’t take notes, but Anne Washburn recorded the 
abstract).  Susan B. Price’s will was written 26 Jan 1864.  She names 
Araminta A. Price, wife of Hiram M. Price and Dr. Thomas D. Stokes to 
hold money in trust for Martha A. Dejarnett wife of James P. Dejarnett.  If 
Martha died without heirs, her portion to go to Aramenta Price.  She also 
mentions Susan C. Chandler, wife of James C. Chandler, sister Sarah 
Gatewood, brother William Y. Stokes, Tecora G. Price (daughter of Hiram 
and Araminta Price).  Names executors brother Dr. Thomas D. Stokes and 
Hiram M. Price. 
 
A note on Martha A. Dejarnett:  In the will of Sylvanus Stokes, father of 
Susannah, he names his great-granddaughter Martha Blackard (Caswell 
co. WB P, p. 429, Jan Court 1847).  In the will of Susannah’s husband, 
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William W. Price, he names: Martha A. Price, who was Martha A. 
Blackard and is now Martha A. Dejarnett (Caswell Co. WB S, p. 282, July 
1860).  Susannah’s will mentions Martha A. Dejarnett, wife of James P. 
Dejarnett (Caswell Co. WB T, p. 63, July court 1864). 
 

3. Meredith Price    m. Sarah (Sally) McDaniel 
 1797 – bef 03 Dec 1849 
 

They married 13 Apr 1819 in Caswell Co., NC.  She was the daughter of 
William McDaniel and his wife Jane.  Meredith is named as deceased in 
his mother’s will written 03 Dec 1849.  There was a Meredith Price as 
head of house in the 1840 Census, but not the 1850 Census.  The Caswell 
Co. Mortality Schedule for 1850, which records deaths from June 1849-
May 1850, lists a Meredith Price who was widowed and died of “drink” at 
age 57. When did Sally die??   
 
On 25 Oct 1821, Meredith executed a deed to Charles P. Harrison trustee 
& Benjn C. West all of Caswell County, negor man ? about 24 yrs for debt 
due West of $32.25; witnessed by William P. McDaniel (Deed Book V, p. 
393).  On page 397-8 of same Deed Book, another deed dated 20 Oct 1821 
states that Meredith is in debt to James Sawyer, Judethan Carter and James 
D. Patton. 
 
In Caswell Co. Deed Book U, p. 218-219, dated 05 Apr 1823, William 
McDaniel makes provisions for William W. Price to act as trustee for his 
daughter Sally, wife of Meredith Price, and her children John W. Price and 
Mary Jane Price and any future children, after the death of himself and his 
wife Jane (witnesses Thomas Penick, Charles P. Harrison, and John S. 
Price).   
 
In her will, Jane McDaniel provides for her grandchildren John W., Mary 
J., Hyram. M.,  Elizabeth A., Susan C., and Sarah J. Price as they come of 
age.  The will is not dated (and I have not seen it), but records show that it 
was contested and taken to Superior Court in March 1844. 
 
In Caswell Co. Deed Book W, pp. 56-7, Charles P. Harrison of Caswell 
Co. sells to Thomas Penick the 77 acres that Meredith Price inherited from 
his father Meredith Price decd in a deed dated 14 Jan 1824 (witnesses 
Benj. C. West and Sylvanus Stokes). 
 
a. John William(son) Price m. Parthenia Edwards Donoho 
 1820-1874    abt 1825 

They married 28 May 1843 in Rutherford Co., TN.  It is reported 
that he died in Wilson Co., TN.  
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The 1850 Census of Rutherford Co., TN, lists John W. Price (29), 
Parthenia Price (25), Mariah (6), Mary (5), William (3), Sarah (1), 
and his mother-in-law, Parthenia Donoho (58). 
 
The 1860 Census of Wilson Co., TN, lists John W. Price (38), 
Parthenia E. Price (35), Mariah B. (16), Mary D. (15), William 
(13), Sally (11), Andrew P. (9), Edwin (7), John (5), Fanny (3), 
and Parthenia E. (6 months). 
 
(1)  Mariah B. Price 
       abt 1844 
(2)  Mary D. Price 
       abt 1845 
(3)  William Price 
        abt 1847 
(4)  Sarah (Sally) Price 
       abt 1849 
(5)  Andrew P. Price 
       abt 1851 
(6)  Edwin Price 
       abt 1853 
(7)  John Williamson Price, Jr. m.  Violet Henderson Baird 

        1854-1925 
            I’m not sure of the source for his children. 

  (a)  Katherine Ready Price m.  H. B. Spencer 
   1879 
  (b)  John Williamson Price m. (1)  Louise Reid Bruce 
         12 April 1882   
           (2)  Barbara T. Atwood 
  (c)  Charles Baird Price m.  Florence M. Haldeman 
   1888 
 (8)  Fanny Price 
        abt 1857 
 (9)  Parthenia E. Price 
        abt 1859 
 
b. Mary Jane Price 
 bef 08 Apr 1823 
 
c. Hiram Meredith Price  m. Araminta A. Ferrell 
 abt 1828/31- btw 1880/1900  18 Aug 1831 – 12 Aug 1914 

They married 16 Apr 1852 in Caswell Co., NC; bondsman John D. 
Keesee.  They are buried in the cemetery at Pelham United 
Methodist Church.  Her dates are from her gravestone, which also 
says “Wife of Hiram M. Price”.  His gravestone dates are not 
visible, though you can read “Corp. Hiram M. Price”, and it 
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appears to say that he was in the Mexican War.  Other records have 
him in the NC Cavalry during the Civil War.  Hiram died in 
Oregonville, Rockingham Co., NC. 
 
In the 1850 Census Araminta was age 18, living with William W. 
Price and his wife Susannah.  I think that Araminta Ferrell was the 
daughter of Hutchings Ferrell and Anne E. Gatewood, who were 
married 11 Oct 1830 in Caswell Co., NC.  Anne E. Gatewood was 
a niece of William Price’s wife Susannah B. Stokes, and Anne died 
31 Jan 1839.  Anne was the daughter of Susannah’s sister Sarah 
Stokes and Lewis Gatewood.   
 
Hiram and Araminta are mentioned in the 1864 will of Susannah 
B. Stokes, wife of William W. Price.  Susan B. Price’s will was 
written 26 Jan 1864 and is recorded in Caswell Co. Will Book T, p. 
63, July Court 1864.  She names Araminta A. Price, wife of Hiram 
M. Price and Dr. Thomas D. Stokes to hold money in trust for 
Martha A. Dejarnett wife of James P. Dejarnett.  If Martha died 
without heirs, her portion to go to Aramenta Price.  She also 
mentions Susan C. Chandler, wife of James C. Chandler, sister 
Sarah Gatewood, brother William Y. Stokes, Tecora G. Price 
(daughter of Hiram and Araminta Price).  Names executors brother 
Dr. Thomas D. Stokes and Hiram M. Price.   
 
The 1860 Census of Rockingham Co., NC, lists Hiram M. Price 
(29), Aramitta Price (26), Terrenia G. (7), Sarah A. (5), William H. 
(3), and Martha H. (1).   
 
The 1870 Census of Rockingham Co., NC, Hiram M. Price (40), 
Avinmeta A. (37), Sallie W. (15), William W. (12), Martha H. 
(11), Maria (8), John E. (7), Charles (5), Robert (3), and Marrie 
(1).   
 
The 1880 Census of Rockingham Co. lists Hiram M. Price (52), 
Arminta (47), Sallie W. (25), Willie H. (23), Maria (18), Eddy 
(15), Charlie (14), Robt (12), Anna (9) Capers N. (5).    
 
The 1900 Census of Rockingham Co., lists Ara A. Price, widowed 
head of house (68), John E. (36, Aug 1863), Robert A. (33, Feb 
1867), and Capers N. (25, May 1875).  The 1900 Census states that 
she was the mother of 10, with 5 still living, and that her father was 
born in Virginia, her mother in NC. 
 
(1)  Tecora/Terrenia G. Price 
       abt 1853 



 28 

She appeared on the 1860 Census, age 7, and was mentioned in 
Susanna Stokes Price’s will written 1864, but was not on 
subsequent censuses with the family.  She may have married or 
died before age 17. 

(2)  Sarah/Sallie A/W Price 
       abt 1855 

She appeared on the census with the family until after she was 
age 25. 

(3)  William/Willie H/W Price 
        abt 1857/8 

He appeared on the census with the family until after he was 
age 23. 

(4)  Martha H. Price 
       abt 1859 

The last census she appeared with the family was when she 
was age 11.  She may have married before age 21. 

(5)  Maria Price 
       abt 1862 

The last census she appeared with the family was when she 
was age 18.  She may have married before age 28. 

 (6)  John E./Eddy Price 
       Aug 1863 

He was still living with his widowed mother in 1900. 
(7)  Charles/Charlie Price 
       abt 1865/6 
(8)  Robert A. Price 
       Feb 1867 

He was still living with his widowed mother in 1900.  The 
1910 Census of Rockingham Co., NC, lists Robert A. Price 
(43), his mother Anna A Price (78), his nephew Charles E. 
Price (10), and his niece Eloise Price (6).  The census shows 
that Charles and Eloise were born in Texas. 

(9)  Marrie/Mary/Anna Price 
       abt 1869/81 
(10)  Capers Norman Price  m. Edith 
         01 May 1875 

He was still living with his widowed mother in 1900.  His 
WWI Draft Registration in Sep 1918 (in Jacksonville, FL) 
gives his date of birth, middle name, and names his wife 
Edith in Covington, KY. 

d. Elizabeth A. Price 
e.  Susan C. Price   m. James C. Chandler 

They married 10 Jul 1852 in Caswell Co., NC.  In the 1850Census 
Susan was living with her uncle William W. Price, and is 
mentioned in his will and the later will of his wife. 

f. Sarah J. Price 
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4. Major Andrew Price   m.   (1) Mary Ann Harding  
 01 Oct 1800 – 06 Dec 1877         or Martha Hardin 
 

In the division of negroes belonging to the estate of his father, Meredith 
Price, that was recorded in January Court 1818, he is named as simply 
Major Price (Caswell Co. Will Book H, p. 120).  His mother’s will names 
son Major A. Price.  The middle name of Andrew is from Ancestors and 
Descendants of John Price Innigrant to Virginia 1610-1611 by Vina 
Chandler Price, 1988, as quoted by David C. Galloway.   

 
Major Price and Mary Ann Harding/Martha Hardin married 30 Sep 1823 
in Logan Co., KY. 

 a. Mary Ann Price (not sure which wife is her mother) 
 Major Price    m. (2)  Maria Jane Harriet Barry 
 They married 15 Mar 1831 in Sumner Co., TN.  He died in Lebanon, 
 Wilson Co., TN. 
 b. James Barry Price 

c. Mary L. Price 
 d. William W. Price 
 
5. John Smith Price   m. (1)  Mary Richardson 
 1803 – Apr 1872 
 They married 23 Dec 1824 in Caswell Co., NC. 
 
      m. (2)  Susan M./B. Harrison 
              abt 1804 - 18 Dec 1883 

They married about 1826 in Pittsylvania Co., VA.  She was the daughter 
of Robert Harrison and Anne Payne, and sister of Charles P. Harrison who 
married John’s sister Susan Burton Price (Farrar’s Island, pp. 102, 111).  
Charles’s sister Susan Harrison is named in her father’s will as Susan 
Price (written 1839).  The date of death is from some old family notes that 
also named her Susan M. Harrison; I don’t know the source.  The 1850 
Census has Susan B. and the 1860 Census has Susan M.  The censuses of 
1870 and 1880 just say Susan. 
 
The 1850 census of Pittsylvania Co., VA, shows John S. Price, age 47, 
born in NC, with wife Susan B., age 46, born in VA.  They are listed with 
children Robert M. (22), Ann W. (20), Joel (18), Martha (14), Sarepta 
(12), Victoria (10), and Pinkney (6).  The 1860 Census of Pittsylvania Co., 
VA,  lists John S. Price (57, b. NC), Susan M. (56, b. VA), Victoria A. 
(17), and Pinckney W. (16).  They are living near John R. Keen and James 
M. Coleman.  The 1870 Census of Pittsylvania Co., VA, lists John S. Price 
(67), Susan (66), and Pinckney W. (25). 
 
a. Robert M. Price  m. (1)  Susan W. McDaniel 
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 abt 1828           1830 – 01 Oct 1852 
They married 10 Nov 1851 in Caswell Co., NC.  Susan was 
Robert’s 1st cousin, the daughter of Robert’s aunt Mary Price and 
John S. McDaniel.  She is buried at the Mahan Cemetery, with an 
inscription that is transcribed as “wife of Robert N. Price.  
Daughter of  J. S. and M. McDaniels.  Age 22.”. 

 Robert M. Price  m. (2)  Mary E. Stamps 
 They married 11 Dec 1854 in Caswell Co., NC. 
 Robert M. Price  m. (3)  Louisa Knight 
 abt 1828           abt 1839 

They married 12 Dec 1860 in Caswell Co., NC. (marriage bond 07 
Dec 1860, bondsman George W. Gunn).  She was the daughter of 
Robert Knight and Elizabeth Burton.  The 1870 Census of Caswell 
Co., lists Robert Price (42), wife Louisa (31), Emma (8), Pinckney 
(6), Margaret (4), Sallie (2), and his mother-in-law Elizabeth 
Knight (58). 
(1) Emma Price 
 abt 1862 
(2) Pinckney Price 
 abt 1864 
(3) Margaret Price 
 abt 1866 
(4) Sallie Price 
 abt 1868 
 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
  BURTON-KNIGHT-HARRISON-GUNN 
 
Noel Burton   m.  Lucy Barret 
1. Robert Burton  m. Mary Harrison 
 Mary was the daughter of Andrew Harrison and Jane Dillard. 
 a. Sally Burton  m. Evans Knight 
  (1) Robert Knight m. Elizabeth Burton 
   (a)  Louisa Knight      m. Robert M. Price 
   (b)  Margaret H. Knight   m.   Henry E. Hodges 
 
2. James Burton  m. Sarah Gunn 

Sarah was the daughter of Thomas Gunn and Sarah Davenport. 
a. Elizabeth Burton m. Robert Knight 

  (1)  Louisa Knight          m.   Robert M. Price 
  (2)  Margaret H. Knight       m.   Henry E. Hodges 
        30 Jun 1840–18 May 1925    27 Mar 1820-11 Dec 1910 

Henry’s 1st wife was Mary C. Gunn, daughter of Daniel 
Gunn and Nancy Burton.  His 2nd wife was Elvira A. 
McDaniel, daughter of John McDaniel and Mary Price. 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
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b. Ann Woodson Price   m. John P. Price 
 1829 - 1905     abt 1820 – bef 1880 

They married 10 Nov 1851 in Caswell Co., NC.  Her dates are 
found in Some Farrar’s Island Descendants by Alvahn Holmes 
(1979). 
The 1870 Census of Danville, Pittsylvania Co., VA, lists John P. 
Price (50), Ann W. (35), Mary C. (16), Susan J. (13), Charles (12), 
Joel (9), and Robert (3).  The 1880 Census of Danville lists Ann 
W. Price (50), Mary C. (26), Susan E. (24), Charles W. (21), Joel 
S. (19), and Robt. L. (13). 
(1) Mary C. Price 
  abt 1854 
(2) Susan J./E. Price 
 abt 1856/7 
(3) Charles W. Price 
 abt 1858/9 
(4) Joel S. Price 
 abt 1861 
(5) Robert L. Price 
 abt 1867 

c. Joel McDaniel Price  m. (1)  Bettie F. Daniel 
 Oct 1831 – 31 Mar 1912         abt 1843 – bef 1878 

They married 18 Mar 1863 in Rockingham Co., NC.  The 1870 
Census of Danville, Pittsylvania Co., VA, lists Joel M. Price (38), 
Bettie F. (27), Edward L. (6), and John W. (2). 
(1) Edward L. Price 
 Jan 1864 
(2) John W. Price 
 Feb 1868/9 
 

 Joel McDaniel Price  m. (2)  Lucy Wharton 
             19 Dec 1852 – Jun 1927 

They married 19 Mar 1878.  She was originally from Richmond, 
but moved to Danville with her mother when she was a young 
woman.  She was the daughter of Robert Henry Wharton and Lucy 
Hilton Dabney.   An obituary for Mrs. Lucy W. Price in the Bee on 
23 Jun 1927 names her parents, her date of birth, and her date of 
marriage.  It names her stepson John Price and her 3 children.  She 
is buried in Green Hill Cemetery. 
 
The 1880 Census of Pittsylvania Co., VA, lists J. M. Price (47), 
Lucie W. (27), Edward L. (16), W.W. (some months, I can’t read 
the #), and Lucie Wharton (69, mother-in-law).  The 1900 Census 
lists Joseph W. [should be Joel M.] Price (68), Lucy W. (46), 
Edward L. (36), John W. (29), Wm. W. (21), Joel H. (18), and 
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Morris D. (11).  The 1920 Census lists L. W. Price (female, 
widowed, head, age 55) and Morris Price (son, age 30). 
(3) William Wharton Price 
 Oct 1878/9 
 (a)  Julien W. Price 
 (b)  Lemma Price 
 (c)  Joel R. Price 
(4) Joel Hylton Price 
 Jan 1882 
(5) Morris Dabney Price 
 Sep 1888 

d. Martha A. Price   m. Yewell F. Hodges  
 1836 - 1897 

They married in 1852 and had 7 children.  The information on 
Martha A. Price is from Some Farrar’s Island Descendants by 
Alvahn Holmes (1979). 

e. Serapta W. Price  m. Washington Thomas Hodges 
 abt 1838 – btw 1880/1900  14 Jul 1834 – 21 Feb 1921 

They married 27 Jul 1858 in Caswell Co., NC.  He was the son of 
Thomas Hodges (his will recorded in 1857) and Frances Miller.  
Washington is buried at an abandoned Methodist Church in 
Mountain Hill, VA. 
 
The 1860 Census of Caswell Co., NC, lists W.T. Hodges (25), 
S.W. Hodges (21), and W.S. Hodges (1 month).   The 1870 Census 
lists Washington Hodges (35), Serepta (32), Walter (10), and 
Weldon (6).  The 1880 Census lists W. F. Hodges (45), Serrepta 
(40), Walter S. (20), and Weldon P. (16).  The 1900 Census lists 
Washington Hodges, age 65, born July 1834, widowed, living with 
a white servant, Virginia Bowles (48). 
 
(1) Walter Smith Hodges       m.       Lucy Nelson Cardwell 
 25 May 1861 – 06 Jun 1929       12 Mar 1865 
 

They married about 1885.  She was born in Pittsylvania 
Co., VA.  He is buried at an abandoned Methodist Church 
in Mountain Hill, VA. 
 
The 1900 Census of Caswell Co., NC, lists Walter S. 
Hodges (40, May 1860), Lucy (35), Frank W. (13, Sep 
1886), Maude E. (12, May 1888), Herbert (8, May 1892), 
Howard P. (4, Nov 1895), and Surrepta W. (6 months, Nov 
1899). 
 
The 1910 Census of Caswell lists Walter S. Hodges (49), 
Lucy N. (44), Maud E. (21), Herbert (17), Howard P. (14), 
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Serrepta M. (10), Mary E. (4), Grace (1 yr, 5 months), and 
Fannie (1 yr, 5 months). 
 
The 1930 Census of Washington, DC, lists Herbert Hodges 
(37), his wife Grace W. (32), his mother Lucy (65), and his 
sister Grace T. Hodges (21). 
 

  (a)  Frank W. Hodges 
         abt 1887 – bef 1950 

He is not listed as a surviving brother in any of his 
siblings’ obituaries that I have to date (earliest is 1950). 

  (b)  Maude Elizabeth Hodges  m.  George C. Chaney 
25 May 1888 – 19 May 1970 
He was the son of George F. Chaney and Mary A.   
According to Maude’s obituary in the Danville Bee on 
19 May 1970, she spent most of her life in the 
Mountain Hill community of Pittsylvania Co., VA, 
before moving to Norfolk in 1950.  She died in Mt. 
Ephraim, NJ, and will be buried in the Bethel Methodist 
Church cemetery in Mountain Hill.  She is survived by 
children Mrs. Fred Witzgall of Newark, NJ, Mrs. 
Jeanne David of Mt Ephraim, NJ, Willard H. Chaney of 
Mt. Ephraim, NJ, and Gilmour J. Chaney of 
Coatesville, PA.  She was survived by siblings Mrs. 
Waldo Hull, Mrs. Robert Michie, and Howard P. 
Hodges. 
 
From her siblings’ obituaries, she lived in Philadelphia, 
PA, in 1950, in Mt. Ephraim, NJ, in 1953, and in 
Norfolk VA, in 1962. 
 
The 1920 Census of Pittsylvania Co., VA, lists George 
S. Chaney (31), Maude E.  (31), and Walter C. (7).  The 
1930 Census of Pittsylvania Co. lists George S. Chaney 
(41), Maud E. (41), Casdwell (18), Evangeline (15), 
Willard H. (10), Gilmer J. (8), Frank J. (6), and Jean C. 
(1 yr 3 months). 
 
(i)  Walter C. (Cardwell??) Chaney 
 abt 1913 
(ii)  Evangeline Chaney 
   abt 1915 

A news clipping, undated, states that she was 
visited in Ringgold, VA, by Misses Grace and 
Frances Hodges of Washington, DC.  They are 
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her aunts, but only about 7 years older than 
Evangeline (see below). 

(iii)  Willard H. Chaney 
   03 Mar 1920 – 21 Jun 2007 
   He died in Mt. Ephraim, NJ, according to Social   
   Security Death Index.  He enlisted in WWII on 30     
   Jan 1942 in Richmond, VA. 
(iv)  Gilmour J. Chaney 
   13 Dec 1921 – Sep 1986 

The Social Security Death Index has that his last 
residence was in Chester, PA. 

(v)  Frank J. Chaney 
   abt 1924 
(vi)  Jean(ne) C. Chaney  m. David 
    abt 1928 
 

  (c)  Herbert Hodges  m.  Grace T. Williams 
         abt 1893          abt 1902 

Their marriage was announced in the Washington Post 
on 21 Sep 1924, with his age 31 and hers 26.   In the 
1920 Census of Washington, DC, he is boarding with 
Jo. M. (?) Cardwell (47) and his wife Salle D. Cardwell 
(35), their daughter Anne M. (23) and son John L. (15), 
and the Cardwells’ niece Virginia P. Blair (24).  The 
Cardwells are probably some relation, as Herbert’s 
mother was a Cardwell. 
 
The 1930 Census of Washington, DC, lists Herbert 
Hodges (37), his wife Grace W (32), his mother Lucy 
(65) and sister Grace T. (23). 
 
His obituary in the Washington Post on 10 Feb 1953 
stated that he was age 60, was a World War I veteran, 
had moved to Washington in 1912, and worked for the 
Post Office for 31 years before retiring in 1949.  He 
died at Georgetown University Hospital and was 
survived by his wife, a brother, and four sisters.  His 
obituary in the Danville Bee on 09 Feb 1953 states that 
he will be buried in Arlington National Cemetery and 
names his siblings:  Mrs. Mary Hall of Danville, Mrs. 
Maude Chaney of Mt. Ephraim, NJ, Mrs. Grace Hull of 
Bryn Mawr, PA, Mrs. Frances Michie of Washington, 
and Howard Hodges of Arlington, VA.  No mention of 
any children. 

 
  (d)  Howard Price Hodges m.  Clara Mabel Hightower 
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         abt 1896 
In the 1920 Census of Washington, DC, he is boarding 
with Jo. M. (?) Cardwell (47) and his wife Salle D. 
Cardwell (35), their daughter Anne M. (23) and son 
John L. (15), and the Cardwells’ niece Virginia P. Blair 
(24).  The Cardwells are probably some relation, as 
Howard’s mother was a Cardwell. 
 
Howard and Mabel married on the Monday before 23 
Jun 1923 (when the announcement was in the Danville 
Bee).  She was the daughter of J. S. Hightower of 
Prospect Hill in Caswell Co., NC.   Howard had already 
moved to Washington, where he was working for the 
Baltimore and Ohio Railway.  They eventually settled 
in Arlington, VA. 
 
The 1930 Census of Washington, DC, lists Howard P. 
Hodges (34), Mabel C. (34), Howard P. Jr. (5), 
Margaret J. (3 or 3 mos?), and brother-in-law William 
F. Hightower. 
 

  (e)  Serrepta Meade (Repp) Hodges  unmarried 
         abt 1900 - 12 Sep 1950 

An article in the Danville Bee on 04 Jun 1923 states 
that Serrepta Hodges graduated from the Medical 
College of Virginia (MCV) as a pharmacist.  She 
returned to Danville, VA, where she worked until a few 
years prior to her death, when she moved to 
Washington, DC, and then to Philadelphia.  Her 
obituary names her siblings Mrs. Maude Chaney and 
Mrs. Waldo Hull, both of Philadelphia, Mrs. Robert 
Michie of Washington, Mrs. T. F. Hall of Danville, 
Herbert and Howard Hodges, both of Washington.  
Another obituary in the Bee, 16 Sep 1850, states that 
the funeral was held on 15 Sep 1950 and that she was 
buried in the Bethel Church cemetery at Mountain Hill.  
Pall bearers were Glen B. Updike, R. Haskins McFall, 
Howard Spicer, Glenn Barker, Obey Bryon, Clyde 
Fleming, Floyd Hall, Larry Hall, and Waldo Hull. 

  (f)  Mary E. Hodges  m. Thomas Floyd Hall 
        15 Dec 1905 – 03 Jan 1962 04 Oct 1894 

They married 18 Jun 1922.  His date of birth is from his 
Draft Registration for World War I; he enlisted in 
Pittsylvania Co., VA.  The draft card states that he was 
born in Lincoln Co., TN. 
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They lived in Danville, VA.  Her obituary in the 
Danville Bee gives her date of birth, that she is buried 
in Mountain View Cemetery in Danville, her surviving 
husband and surviving siblings:  Mrs. W. S. Hull of 
Bryn Mawr, PA, Mrs. R. W. Michie of Kensington, 
MD, Mrs. George C. Chaney of Norfolk, VA, and 
Howard P. Hodges of Arlington, VA.  No mention of 
any children. 

  (g)  Frances (Fannie) Hodges    m. Robert W. Michie 
         abt 1908 

From her siblings’ obituaries, they were living in 
Washington, DC, in 1950 and 1953 and in Kensington, 
MD, in 1962. 
An undated news clipping states that Miss Frances 
Hodges visited Evangeline Chaney in Ringgold, VA, 
from Washington, DC.  Evangeline Chaney was her 
niece, daughter of her sister Maude (see above).  

  (h)  Grace T. Hodges  m. Waldo S. Hull 
         abt 1908 

From her siblings’ obituaries, they lived in Bryn Mawr, 
PA. 
An undated news clipping states that Miss Grace 
Hodges visited Evangeline Chaney in Ringgold, VA, 
from Washington, DC.  Evangeline Chaney was her 
niece, daughter of her sister Maude (see above).  
 

 
f. Victoria A. Price  m. Thomas Jefferson Hodges 
 05 Jan 1841 – Dec 1878  03 Jul 1840-29 May 1897 
       

Victoria A. Price and Thomas J. Hodges married 15 Jan 1865 in 
Pittsylvania Co., VA.  Their dates are from gravestones in Shady 
Gove Cemetery in Providence, Caswell Co., NC. 
 
In the 1860 Census, she is living with her parents and listed as 
Victoria A. Price, age 17.  The death certificates of Mamie Hodges 
Carter and Rosa Hodges Peirce name parents Thomas Jefferson 
Hodges and Victoria Price.   
 
However, the 1870 Census of Caswell Co. lists a Robert Hodges 
(why Robert??) (28), wife Victoria (28), children Mary (4), and 
Rosa (2) and the 1880 Census lists Thos. J. Hodges (40) and Maria 
J. (32) with children Mary (14) and Rosa (12).  Who is Robert?  Is 
Maria a 2nd wife??   
 
(1) Mary (Mamie) Estelle Hodges     m.  Lewis Stewart Carter 
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 23 Oct 1865 – 06 Sep 1952         03 Jul 1856-28 Sep 1947 
 

Her obituary in the Danville Bee gives her parents names, 
and that she was buried at Shady Grove Methodist Church.  
Her death certificate gives her dates of birth and death, as 
well as her parents’ names, that she was a widow, and that 
she is buried at Shady Grove Church in Caswell Co., NC.  
Her obituary names her children. 
 
Lewis Carter was the son of Iverson Brooks Carter and 
Susan Mary Gatewood.  Susan Mary Gatewood was the 
daughter of Lewis Gatewood and Sally Stokes.  Sally 
Stokes was the daughter of Nancy Price and Sylvanus 
Stokes.  Iverson Brooks Carter was the son of Stewart 
Carter and Pencelia Voss. 
 
The 1920 Census for Caswell Co., NC, lists Lewis S. Carter 
(63), Mamie (52), Stann L. [should be Glenn, I think] (28), 
John S. (25), Fannie Sue (21), Mary C. (21), Harry L. (13), 
and Mildred H. (12).  [Rose married in 1923 (see below), 
where is she in the census?]  The 1930 Census lists Louis 
Carter (73), Mamie (63), Louis G. (36), Harry P. (24), and 
Mildred H. (21). 
 
(a)  Lewis Glenn Carter m.       Janie Reynolds Mahan 
       03 Dec1891–22 May1975      04 Jun1899–18 May1977 

They married 22 Jan 1958 in Caswell Co., NC.  Janie 
was the daughter of Joseph W. Mahan and Grace L. 
Reynolds.  Lewis enlisted in WWI on 05 Jun 1917. 
His obituary in the Danville Bee on 23 May 1975 
names his wife, parents, and siblings.  Her obituary 
names her parents, birth date, and her husband’s date of 
death.  They are both buried in the Shady Grove Church 
cemetery in Caswell.   

(b)  John Thomas Carter m. Fannie Goodson 
       07 Jul 1894–29 Nov 1990    09 Sep 1899–09 Mar 1988 
 (c)  Susan V. (Fannie/Annie Sue) Carter   
       abt 1899   m.  Ernest Howard Gatewood 

 In her mother’s 1952 obituary, she is living in Caswell,     
but by her brother’s 1975 obituary she is in Danville, 
VA. 

(d)  Mary Edward Carter  m.    John W. McCord 
       abt 1899 

The Danville Bee reports of a Valentine Party given in 
honor of Miss Elizabeth Mc Cord of Lexington, KY, by 
Miss Janie Mahan on 14 Feb 1929.  The obituaries for 
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both Lewis Glenn Carter (1975) and his mother (1952) 
state that Mary McCord was living in Lexington, KY. 
 
Hostess Janie Mahan was assisted by Mrs. George 
Coleman and Mrs. Billy Fulton (former Miss Sue 
Barksdale Gatewood, I think).  The guests were listed 
as Misses Elizabeth McCord, Annie Carter, Mildred 
Carter, Virginia Ferrell, Mary Fitzgerald, Lavinia 
Green, Mabel Hanne, Estell Harper, Mary Hodges, Ola 
King, and Messrs. Henry Adams, Russell Anderson, 
Glenn Carter, Harvie Carter, Preston Harper, Russell 
Prillaman, Ralph Winchester, Prof. Fred B. Horton, and 
Dr. George Snead. 
(i)  Elizabeth McCord (I assume??) 

  (e)  Rose Carter  m. Alvis Lea Florence 
        29 Aug 1901- 09 Apr 1998     15 Oct 1889–14 Jun 1964 

The Danville Bee has an article on 19 Dec 1923 
reporting a social function for Miss Rose Carter on her 
upcoming marriage to take place that month.  The 
guests were listed as Misses Rose Carter, Mildred 
Carter, Vida Lea Stephens, Janie Mahan, Mittie Mahan, 
Estelle Harper, Birdie Harper, Linda Brooks, Virginia 
Hodges, and Mesdames L. S. Carter (her mother, I add), 
E. W. Carter, J. W. Booker, J. W. Mahan (Janie’s 
mother, it seems), J. A. Miles, J. S. Carter, and J. M. 
Hodges.   
In both her mother’s 1952 obituary and her brother’s 
1975 obituary, she is living in Yanceyville, NC. 

(f)  Harry Price Carter  m.  Nellie Louhoff 
      29 Jun 1905–09 Jun 1975       08 Sep 1908–04 Jan 1966 

His mother’s 1952 Obituary states that he is living in         
Richmond, VA, as does his brother’s 1975 obituary. 

(g)  Mildred H. Carter  m. Stone 
      abt 1908/9 

In her brother’s 1975 obituary, she is living in Caswell 
Co., NC. 

 
   (2) Rose Hodges  m. Thomas N. Pierce 
    04 Nov 1867 – 04 Mar 1949  abt 1879 - bef 04 Mar 1949 

Her death certificate names her parents and gives her dates.  
She was buried in the Pelham Methodist Church Cemetery. 
 
The 1930 Census of Caswell Co., NC, lists Thomas N. 
Pierce (50) and Rosa (60).  The 1910 Census has Thomas 
N. Pierce (31), living with his mother Isabella A. (62) and 
sister Mary C. Pierce (26). 
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Isabella A. Pinnick married John A. Pierce on 15 Mar 1866 
in Pittsylvania Co., VA.   She was born 17 Dec 1846 and 
died 04 Jan 1926.  Her husband predeceased her.  Although 
her death certificate names her father John T. Pennick, it is 
thought that she is the daughter of William G. Pinnix and 
Isabella W. Adams.  (The death certificate gives the 
mother’s name as Isabella Pennick, not her maiden name.)  
The informant on the death certificate is T. N. Pierce.   
 
The 1850 Census of Caswell Co., NC, lists Mary Adams 
(56), Silvester Adams (25), Sarah Adams (32), William 
Penick (37), Isabella Penick (28), Mary Penick (11), 
Margarett Penick (9), Sarah Penick (5), Isabella A. Penick 
(3), and Silvester Penick (2 months). 
 
The 1860 Census of Caswell Co., NC, lists Silvester P. 
Adams (36), Sarah A. Adams (38), Isabell Penick (34), 
Margaret N. Penick (18), Sallie A. Penick (16), Isabella A. 
Penick (12), John W. Penick (8), and Peter A. Penick (4). 
 
If I am correct, Thomas N. Pierce is the son of Isabella A 
Penick, who is the daughter of Isabella W. Adams.  My 
Astin book says that Mary Alice Astin and John Adams had 
a daughter Isabella Adams.  Mary Alice’s father William 
Astin, in his will written 12 May 1832 and proven 16 Mar 
1835, names his daughter Mary Adams and his 
grandchildren, children of John Adams deceased, Isabella 
Adams, Margaret Adams, and Sylvester Adams. 
 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
    ASTIN EXCURSION 
 
William Astin   m.  Margaret Wilson 
 
They married 16 Jun 1779 in Pittsylvania Co., VA.  She was the daughter 
of Peter Wilson and Alicey.  William’s will was written 12 May 1832 and 
proven 16 Mar 1835 in Pittsylvania Co., VA. 
1. James Astin   m. Sarah (Sally) A. Jones 
 23 May 1780 – 30 Oct 1860 
 a. Margaret W. Astin 
 b. Wilson James Astin  m.  Mary Harper ? 
 c. Mary I. W. Astin 
 d. William George Astin  m.  Elvira Harper ? 
2. Peter Astin 
 a. Mary H. Astin 
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3. William Astin   m. Anne P. Harrison 
 They married 23 Oct 1818 in Pittsylvania Co., VA.  She was the 
 daughter of Robert Harrison and Anne Payne; surety was Josias 
 W. Harrison (she had a brother Josias Woodson Harrison). 
4. George Astin   m. Margaret Millner 
5. Mary Alice Astin  m. John Adams 
 10 Jun 1794 – 05 Jun 1885  abt 1790 - bef 1832 
 They married 28 Mar 1814 in Pittsylvania Co., VA. 

a. Isabella W. Adams m. William G. Pinnix 
 abt 1822   abt 1813 
 (1) Mary Pinnix  m. Robert J. West 
  abt 1839 
 (2) Margaret Pinnix 
  abt 1841 
 (3) Sarah Pinnix  m. John A. McKinsey 
  abt 1845 
 (4) Isabella A. Pinnix m. John A. Pierce 
  17 Dec 1846 – 04 Jan 1926 

They married 15 Mar 1866 in Pittsylvania Co., VA.  
In a census, Peter Pinnix and Margaret Pinnix are 
living in the household of their brother-in-law John 
A. Pierce. 
(a) Thomas N. Pierce m. Rose Hodges 
 Abt 1879 – bef 04 Mar 1949  
(b) Mary C. Pierce  
 abt 1884 

 (5) Silvester Pinnix 
  abt 1850 
 (6) John W. Pinnix m. Pattie Borum 
 (7) Peter A. Pinnix 
b. Margaret Adams 
c. Silvester Adams  
 abt 1825 

6. Polly Astin   m. Peter Adams 
7. Elizabeth Astin  m. (1)  McKinzee 
      (2)  John Gregory 
 They married 08 Jan 1812. 
 a. Margaret Gregory 
 b. Polly Gregory 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
 
g. Pinckney W. Price  m. Louisa A. Harrison 
 07 Sep 1845 – 21 Jun 1879  b. 1848 

They married 30 May 1871 in Caswell Co., NC (Farrar’s has 
marriage to Lois Harrison in 1879).  She was the daughter of 
Samuel Satterwhite/Smith Harrison and Louisa Matilda McDaniel.  
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Louisa McDaniel (b. 1820) was the daughter of William P. 
McDaniel and Nancy Williamson Harrison (daughter of Andrew 
Harrison and Nancy Williamson).  Pinckney W. Price is buried at 
the Mahan Cemetery.  

 
6. Susannah Burton Price  m. Charles P. Harrison 
 27 Jan 1805 – bef 01 Jul 1857  1797 – 1840 

They married 12 Oct 1820 in Caswell Co., NC.  He was the son of Robert 
Harrison and Anne Payne.  There is much more on this family in my 
Harrison paper. 
 
In Caswell Co. Deed Book W, p. 303, Charles P. Harrison and his wife 
Susan B. Harrison of Pittsylvania Co., VA, sell the 73 acres that she 
inherited from her father Meredith Price, decd., to William Penick in a 
deed dated 05 Apr 1826.  Susan acknowledged the deed separate from her 
husband. 
 
In the 1850 Census, she is living with her mother and 2 youngest children 
next to her brother William W. Price.   
 

7. Nancy (Ann) S. Price   m. William H. Nunnally 
 1806 - aft July 1860 
 They married 06 May 1823 in Caswell Co., NC. 
 a. Martha Elizabeth Nunnally m. James Monroe Neal 
  19 Jan 1825 – 06 Oct 1876  11 Feb 1818 – 28 Jul 1884 

James was the son of Zachariah Neal and Rebecca Rice. 
 
8. Daniel Smith Price   m. (1) Agnes R. Harrison 
 04 Nov 1809 – 15 Aug 1871         b.  abt 1816 

They married 12 Feb 1833 in Caswell Co., NC.  She was the daughter of 
John Pendleton Harrison and Margaret (Peggy) Satterwhite.  John 
Pendleton Harrison was the half-brother of Charles Kennon Harrison who 
married Martha Stokes. 
a. Margaret A. Price 
 abt 1835 

      m. (2)  Eliza Frances Stokes 
              abt 1822 – May 1887 

They married 14 Dec 1842 in Caswell Co., NC.  She was the daughter of 
Sylvanus Stokes (whose 1st wife was Daniel’s aunt Nancy Price), and 
sister or half-sister of Susan B. Stokes who married Daniel’s brother 
William W. Price.  She died in Danville, VA. 
b. Mary Ann Price  m. Elijah Benton Withers 
 1847 – Jan 1869   31 Dec 1836 – 23 Apr 1898 

Elijah was the son of Elijah Keen Withers and Nancy B. Lawson.   
(1)  Eugene Withers  m. Daisy Hancock 
       22 Jan 1867   15 Apr 1878 
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They married 06 Dec 1905 in Danville, VA.  She was the 
daughter of William B. Hancock and Eleanor Robinson. 
(a)  Margaret Vernon Withers 
      23 Oct 1906 

(2)  Daniel Price Withers 
       Jan 1869 – Jan 1869 

c. Lemma Price   m. Elijah Benton Withers 
 d. 05 Nov 1907 

They married Dec 1875.  He had 1st been married to her sister 
Mary Ann. 
(1)  Daniel Price Withers 
(2)  Mary Withers  m. Starling 
(3)  Elijah Benton Withers 
(4)  Gertrude Withers  m. Fogle 

 
9. Mary M. (Polly) Price   m. John S. McDaniel 
 26 Sep1811 – 01 Feb 1858   25 Dec 1806 – 27 Aug 1852 
 

The marriage bond is dated 08 Apr 1828 in Caswell Co., NC.  Anne 
Washburn has that they married 28 Apr 1828 in the First Presbyterian 
Church in Danville, VA.  Was the marriage bond in Caswell and marriage 
in Danville? 
 
Mary and John were double 1st cousins.  John was the son of Joel 
McDaniel and Martha (Patsy) Price.  Joel was the brother of Mary’s 
mother Mary McDaniel.  Martha was the sister of Mary’s father Meredith 
Price. 
 
John S. and Mary M. are buried in the Mahan Cemetery in Caswell Co., 
NC.  Gravestones give their dates of death and exact ages, from which 
birth dates are calculated.  Mary’s parents Meredith and Mary Price are 
buried in the same cemetery. 
 
Mary’s will was written 03 Jan 1857, recorded in July 1859 in Caswell 
Co., NC (but is in the book of court proceedings for Apr 1858 – did I copy 
something incorrectly??).  The will names executors son-in-law Henry E. 
Hodges and son James W. McDaniel, and left funds in trust for her son 
Joel A. McDaniel and his heirs.   
 
The will of Mary’s brother William.W. Price names her and her children.  
The will was written 01 Jul 1857, a codicil added 13 Aug 1859, and the 
will proven in Caswell Co., NC, in July 1860 (Will Book S, p. 282).  The  
will names, among other siblings, his sister Mary McDaniel (and her sons 
James and Joel McDaniel).  The codicil was written after Mary McDaniel 
and her son Joel had died, and names Joel’s son John McDaniel.   
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 a. Susan W. McDaniel  m. Robert M. Price 
  1830 – 01 Oct 1852   abt 1828 

They married 10 Nov 1851 in Caswell Co., NC.  Robert was 
Susan’s 1st cousin, the son of Susan’s uncle John Smith Price and 
Susan B. Harrison.  She is buried at the Mahan Cemetery, with an 
inscription that is transcribed as “wife of Robert N. Price.  
Daughter of J. S. and M. McDaniels.  Age 22.”.  After her death, 
Robert married (2) Mary E. Stamps and (3) Louisa Knight in Dec 
1860.  Louisa’s sister Margaret Knight married Susan’s sister 
Elvira’s widower Henry E. Hodges in Jan 1863. 

 b. James W. McDaniel 
He is named as an executor in his mother’s will written 03 Jan 
1857. 

 c. Elvira A. McDaniel  m. Henry E. Hodges 
  d. by 1863    27 Mar 1820 – 11 Dec 1910 

They married 12 Jan 1853 in Caswell Co., NC.  “Son-in-law Henry 
E. Hodges” is named in the will of Mary McDaniel written 03 Jan 
1857.  Elvira was his 2nd wife.   
Henry married 1st Mary C. Gunn on 10 Dec 1842.  She was the 
daughter of Daniel Gunn and Nancy Burton (Daniel Gunn’s 2nd 
wife was a Margaret Harrison who he married in 1854).   
After Elvira died, Henry married Margaret H. Knight on 06 Jan 
1863.  Margaret (30 Jun 1840 – 18 May 1925) was the daughter of 
Robert Knight and Elizabeth Burton.  Henry Hodges and his wife 
Margaret are buried at Shady Grove Methodist Church in Caswell 
Co., NC. 

 d. Joel A. McDaniel  m. Jane N. Chambers 
 12 Jan 1834 – 09 Aug 1859 

He is buried in the Mahan Cemetery in Caswell Co., NC.  
Gravestone gives his dates of death and exact age, from which 
birth date is calculated.  In her will dated 03 Jan 1857, his mother 
left funds in trust for her son Joel A. McDaniel and his heirs. 

 There is a marriage bond for a Joel A. McDaniel and Jane N. 
Chambers in Caswell Co., NC, dated 10 Oct 1854.  I’m placing her 
here. 

  (1) John McDaniel 
   b. bef 13 Aug 1859 

He is named in a codicil to the will of Joel’s uncle William 
W. Price.  The will was written 01 Jul 1857, a codicil added 
13 Aug 1859, and the will proven in Caswell Co., NC, in 
July 1860 (Will Book S, p. 282). 
 

10. Thomas Pinckney Price 
 14 Mar 1814 – 11 Sep 1836 
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In the division of negroes belonging to the estate of his father, Meredith 
Price, that was recorded in January Court 1818, he is named as simply 
Pinckney Price (Caswell Co. Will Book H, p. 120).  He is not named in his 
mother’s will written in 1849.   
 
The full name Thomas Pinckney Price is from the book by Vina Chandler 
Price, as quoted by David C. Galloway.  A survey of the Mahan Cemetery, 
cited earlier, shows a Thomas P. Price with the dates above.   
 
In January Court 1837, the sale of negroes of Thomas P. Price was 
recorded in Caswell Co., NC, (Will Book M, p. 641).  It shows that on 26 
Dec 1836, the negroes were sold to William W. Price, George W. Price, 
Daniel S. Price, John Keesee, William H. Nunnally, and Joshua Young.  A 
parcel of books was in the hands of Dr. James Williamson.  Of those 
names, (1) William W. Price, George W. Price, and Daniel S. Price were 
his brothers, and (2) William H. Nunnally was his brother-in-law.    

 
11. James Addison Price   m. Martha Jane Wright 
 10 Jan 1816 – 06 Jan 1894   1819 – 18 Dec 1901 
  

They married 30 Jun 1841 in Caswell Co., NC (marriage bond 26 Jun 
1841; witness Allen Y. Stokes).  Martha was the daughter of James Wright  
and Martha Williamson.  Martha Wright had been orphaned in 1832, and 
George Williamson served as her guardian (Caswell Co., Book 3, p. 105).  
Martha Wright’s brother Weldon Wright went to medical school at the 
University of Pennsylvania with James Addison Price (class of 1840-41).  
After their marriage, Addison and Martha apparently moved to High 
Shoals, GA. 

 
His father’s estate settlement is on record in Caswell Co., NC, Deed Book 
S, p. 246 (supposedly provides full name of James Addison Price).  The 
division of negroes belonging to the estate of Meredith Price was recorded 
in January Court 1818, where he is named as simply Addison Price (Will 
Book H, p. 120).  His mother’s will names son James A. Price. 
 
a. Mary Emma Price 
 20 Apr 1842 – 01 Jun 1855 
b. Sarah Eugenia Price   m. James Weldon Lea 
 04 Oct 1843 – 21 Oct 1867  

They married 15 Nov 1865.  He was her 1st cousin, son of her aunt 
Ann Blount Wright and Thomas L. Lea.  

c. Susan Tahlulah Price   m. John W. Hinton 
They married 13 Apr 1869.  [Wonder if this is the brother of the O. 
R. Hinton who married Susan’s 1st cousin Georgia F. Price in 
1879?] 

 (1)  John W. Hinton 
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        1870  
 (2)  Addison Hinton 
       1872 
 (3)  Mary Lou Hinton 
        1874 
 (4)  O. R. Hinton 
                   1876 
 (5)  Hugh Price Hinton 
        1879 
 (6)  Harold H. Hinton 
         1884 
d. Weldon Wright Price   m. Callie Owenby 
 18 Aug 1848 
 They married 31 Oct 1871. 
e. Eudora W. Price   m. James Weldon Lea 
 03 Jun 1849 

They married 16 Oct 1871.  He had 1st been married to her sister 
Sarah Eugenia, who died in 1867. 

f. Carmilia Isabella Price 
 20 May 1852 – 15 Sep 1853 
g. William Pinckney Price  m. Sallie Lowe 
 10 Mar 1854 – 01 Dec 1927 
 They married 19 Mar 1874. 
h. Anna Corinna Price 
 03 Apr 1857 – 10 Nov 1857 
i. Mattie Ella Price   m. Kale Lowe 
 21 Dec 18?? - 18 Jun 1888 
 They married 08 Dec 1880. 
j. James Daniel Price   m. Lula Wilson 
 14 Jul 1860 – 25 Sep 1925 
 They married 16 Dec 1885. 
 (1)  James Addison Price 
 (2)  Maria Price 
 (3)  William Pinckney Price 
        28 Jul 1893 
 (4)  Francis Edwards Price 
         23 Mar 1897 

 
12. George Washington Price  m. (1)  Frances M. Watt 
 10 Jan 1816 – 20 Aug 1887          abt 1820 

 
They married 21 Nov 1845 in Rockingham Co., NC.  [There was a 
William M. Watt who went to medical school with Wash’s brother 
Addison.  I am wondering if Frances is his sister.] 
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The 1850 Census of Caswell co., NC, has George W. Price (age 33), wife 
Frances M. Price (age 30) and children, Mary S. (age 3) and Corimra M. 
(age 1). 

 
His father’s estate settlement is on record in Caswell Co., NC, Deed Book 
S, p. 246 (supposedly provides full name of George Washington Price).    
The division of negroes belonging to the estate of Meredith Price was 
recorded in January Court 1818, where he is named as simply Washington 
Price (Will Book H, p. 120).  His mother’s will names son George W. 
Price. 
  
His will was recorded in 1887 in Caswell Co. Will Book A, p. 514.  It was 
written 14 July 1887.  It names wife Isabella G. Price, daughters of his 1st 
wife, C. Maud Rudd [?], Mary Sue Bethell, Georgia F. Hinton, John 
McDaniel "a kinsman who lived with me for some years", and grandson 
George W. Bethell.  Executors were W. P. Bethell and O. R. Hinton.  
Witnesses were J.A. Pierce, A. R. Wilson, M.D. 
 
There is an obituary in the Richmond Dispatch on 24 Aug 1887, p. 4.  It 
does not give enough family information to identify the specific George 
W. Price.  It says “The funeral of the late George W. Price took place from 
the church at Pelham yesterday afternoon, and the services were 
conducted by Drs. Edwards and Starr, of this city. Many people from the 
city attended.” 
 
The Memorabilia of Pelham United Methodist Church has a newspaper 
account of the wedding of the youngest daughter of Mr. G. Wash Price, 
Georgie, to Mr. O. R. Hinton of Covington, GA, on 06 May 1879.  The 
article states that the twin brother of Mr. Wash Price, Dr. Addison Price, 
attended.  Also in attendance were Mr. and Mrs. John Hinton of GA 
(parents of the groom) and Col. E. B. Withers (per my research, he 
married Georgie’s first cousins Mary Ann Price who died in 1869 and 
Lemma Price, whom he married in 1875.  Mary Ann and Lemma were 
sisters, children of Daniel Smith Price and Eliza Frances Stokes.)  The list 
of names includes Maj. W. D. Bethell, Mr. W.P. Bethell and family, Mr. 
and Mrs. C.E. Redd, Misses Kate Anderson, Sallie Fuller, and Lelia 
Clements, and Mr. Banks Norman of Danville.  The 13 couples engaged 
as attendants were Mr. Means and Miss Bell Daniel, Mr. Bruce Guerrant 
and Miss Kate Doe, Mr. John Hutchings and Miss Kate Price, Mr. John 
McDaniel and Miss Sallie Daniel, Mr. John Daniel and Miss L. Swann, 
Mr. Jimmie Price and Miss Kate Dee, Mr. Charlie Bethell and Miss Mary 
Rogers of GA, Mr. Thos. Swann and Miss Annie Bethell, Mr. W. T. 
Hutchings and Miss Emma Price, Mr. Robert Bass and Miss Belle Price, 
Mr. Oliver Dudley and Miss Nannie Law, Mr. John E. Penn and Miss 
Dora Williamson, and Mr. D. Neal and Miss Mattie Norman. 
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The 1860 Census of Caswell Co., NC, lists Geo W. Price (44), F. M. Price 
(40), M.S. (13), C. M. (10) and F. G. Price (20 or 2?). 
 
a. Mary Sue Price  m. William Pinckney Bethell 
 22 Dec 1846 – 25 Jun 1929  abt 1845 

They married 21 June 1865.  The 1880 Census of Danville lists 
Wm. P. Bethell (age 35), Mary S (33), Wm D (14), Geo W. (12), 
Jennie B (9), Maud F (3).  The 1910 Census lists William P. 
Bethell (age 65), wife Mary S. (age 63), daughter Maud Canter 
(age 36), son-in-law, Austin W. Canter (age 38), and grandchildren 
Sarah W. (age 6) and Susan B. (age 4).   

 (1)  William D. Bethell 
(2)  George W. Bethell 

 (3)  Jennie B. Bethell 
 (4)  Maud F. Bethell  m. Austin W. Canter 
        13 Jul 1876 – 23 Dec 1960 
b. Corimra Maud Price  m. C. E. Redd 
 abt 1849 
c. Georgia F. Price  m. Osborne R. Hinton 

Oct 1859    Feb 1854 
They married 06 May 1879 in Caswell Co., NC.  He was from 
Covington, GA, son of John W. Hinton and Louisa M. Rogers.  
John and Louisa married 02 Oct 1845 in Newton Co., GA.  
The 1900 Census of Caswell Co., NC, lists Osborn R Hinton (46), 
Georgia (41), Fannie W (20), and Louise R (18).  The 1910 Census 
of Caswell Co., NC, lists Osborn R. Hinton (57), Georgia F (50), 
and Louise R (28).  In both censuses, the daughters were shown as 
born in GA, as was their father. 
(1)  Fannie W. Hinton 
       Apr 1880 
(2)  Louise Rogers Hinton 
       July 1882 – Mar 1952 

 Her death was reported in the Danville Bee on 10 Mar 1952, 
stating that she died in Richmond, VA, with services in 
Danville and burial in Green Hill cemetery. 

 
George W. Price    m. (2)  Isabella G. Scales 
 
They married 21 May 1866 in Rockingham Co., NC.  The 1870 Census of 
Caswell Co., NC, lists George Price (53), Isabella (33), Corrinna (20), 
Susan Scales (26), Fannie Scales (11) and James Furgerson (42).   
 
The 1880 Census of Caswell Co., NC, lists Geo W. Price (64) and Isabella 
G. Price (45). 
 

J. Mary (Molly) Price   m. William McDaniel 
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 06 May 1772 – bef 18 Sep 1815  abt 26 Mar 1774 –  
 

Her date of birth was obtained from an internet source that for its birth and death 
dates cites (1) Southern KY Genealogical Society, Bowling Green, KY, The 
Longhunter, Vol. X, #2, p. 66; (2) “Ancestors and Descendants of John Price, 
Immigrant of Va, 1610-11” found in LDS Library, Oct 1992; (3) Burton Families, 
Vol. 1, Issue I, June 1967, found in Surname File at KY Historical Society, 
Frankfort, KY, 23 Jun 1991; (4) Burton-Price family Bible published in National 
Genealogical Society Quarterly, Vol 47, #2, June 1959; and (5)  Burton 
Chronicles of Virginia by Francis Burton Harrison. 
 
Molly and William married 07 May 1797 in Pittsylvania Co., VA.  I think he was 
the son of Johnson McDaniel and Elizabeth Maybury.  Johnson McDaniel was the 
son of William McDaniel and Ann (Smith, we think). 
 
Molly’s mother Susannah signed a deed dated 18 Sep 1815 dividing what was 
loaned to her from William’s estate to be divided at her discretion upon her death 
(Pittsylvania Co., VA, Deed Book 21 or 27, p.9 or 39).  She names as her children 
and William’s Sally Burton, Robert Price, Patsy McDaniel (deceased), Polly 
McDaniel (deceased), and Nancy Stokes (deceased), Betsy Perkins, and John 
Price. 
1. John J. McDaniel 
 1804 
2. Johnson McDaniel 
 28 Apr 1806 
3. Thomas McDaniel 
 1808 

 
K. Nancy Price    m. Sylvanus Stokes 
 15 Mar 1774 – bef  25 Dec 1809  d. by Jan 1847 

They married 16 Dec 1793 in Pittsylvania Co., VA.   
 
His will is recorded in Caswell Co., NC, Will Book P., p. 429, Jan. Court 1847.  It 
was written 25 Oct 1844.   His will names his children, but it is unclear as to 
whether or not these are children of Nancy Price.   
 
Silvanus Stokes married Nancy/Ann Gatewood in Caswell Co., NC, dated 25 Dec 
1809.  She was born 06 Aug 1781, the daughter of Dudley Gatewood and 
Elizabeth Dix.  I’m not sure which children go with which wife. 
 
[There is also a marriage bond for a Sylvanus Stokes and Drucilla Pulliam in 
Halifax Co., VA, dated 09 Jun 1781.  She was the daughter of Joseph Pulliam and 
Sarah Brandon, who were in Caswell Co., NC, by 1813.  Joseph Pulliam’s will in 
Caswell Co. DB 1, p, 147, in Oct. Court 1822 indicates that his daughter Drucilla 
Stokes and her husband Sylvanus were alive when the will was written 05 Jun 
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1821.  Their marriage bond is dated in 1781, prior to the bonds with Nancy Price 
and Ann Gatewood.  Therefore, it must be a different Sylvanus Stokes.] 
 
Sylvanus’s will names (in order when he lists them) grandsons Robert Gatewood 
and William Gatewood, daughter Susan B. Price (wife of W.W. Price), daughter 
Polly (wife of Allen Stokes), daughter Eliza F. Price (wife of Daniel Price), son 
William Stokes, son Dudley Stokes, son Joel A. Stokes, son Thomas D. Stokes, 
son Allen Y. Stokes.  Elsewhere he names daughter Sally (wife of Lewis 
Gatewood).  He left a trust for his “unfortunate daughter Nancy W. Swift”, to be 
run by his sons William and Thomas D. Stokes.  He also names grandson Thomas 
Harrison and great granddaughter Martha Blackard.  

 
My guess is children of Nancy Price (m. 1793): 

 1. Sarah (Sally) Apperson Stokes    m. Lewis Gatewood 
  17 Oct 1794    24 Oct 1785 – 01 Jan 1849 

They married 01 Feb 1811 in Caswell Co., NC.  He was the son of Dudley 
Gatewood and Elizabeth Dix. Sarah is named in her sister Susan B. Price’s 
1864 will. The names and birth dates of these children are from Anne 
Washburn: 

  a. Anne Elizabeth (Nancy) Gatewood m. Hutchings Ferrell 
   26 Jun 1812 – 31 Jan 1839 

They married 11 Oct 1830 in Caswell Co., NC. 
(1)  Araminta Ferrell  m. Hiram Meredith Price 
       18 Aug 1831 – 12 Aug 1914 abt 1828/31- btw 1880/1900  

They married 16 Apr 1852 in Caswell Co., NC; bondsman 
John D. Keesee.  They are buried in the cemetery at Pelham 
United Methodist Church.  Her dates are from her gravestone, 
which also says “Wife of Hiram M. Price”.  His gravestone 
dates are not visible, though you can read “Corp. Hiram M. 
Price”, and it appears to say that he was in the Mexican War.  
Other records have him in the NC Cavalry during the Civil 
War.  Hiram died in Oregonville, Rockingham Co., NC. 
He was the son of Meredith Price and Sally McDaniel, and 
grandson of Meredith Price and Polly McDaniel.  Araminta’s 
aunt Susannah Stokes was married to Hiram’s uncle William 
W. Price.   

  
In the 1850 Census Araminta was age 18, living with William 
W. Price and his wife Susannah.  Notice that ARaminta’s 
mother had died in 1839.  

 
Hiram and Araminta are mentioned in the 1864 will of 
Susannah B. Stokes, wife of William W. Price.  Susan B. 
Price’s will was written 26 Jan 1864 and is recorded in Caswell 
Co. Will Book T, p. 63, July Court 1864.  She names Araminta 
A. Price, wife of Hiram M. Price and Dr. Thomas D. Stokes to 
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hold money in trust for Martha A. Dejarnett wife of James P. 
Dejarnett.  If Martha died without heirs, her portion to go to 
Aramenta Price.  She also mentions Susan C. Chandler, wife of 
James C. Chandler, sister Sarah Gatewood, brother William Y. 
Stokes, Tecora G. Price (daughter of Hiram and Araminta 
Price).  Names executors brother Dr. Thomas D. Stokes and 
Hiram M. Price.   

 
The 1860 Census of Rockingham Co., NC, lists Hiram M. 
Price (29), Aramitta Price (26), Terrenia G. (7), Sarah A. (5), 
William H. (3), and Martha H. (1).   

 
The 1870 Census of Rockingham Co., NC, Hiram M. Price 
(40), Avinmeta A. (37), Sallie W. (15), William W. (12), 
Martha H. (11), Maria (8), John E. (7), Charles (5), Robert (3), 
and Marrie (1).   

 
The 1880 Census of Rockingham Co. lists Hiram M. Price 
(52), Arminta (47), Sallie W. (25), Willie H. (23), Maria (18), 
Eddy (15), Charlie (14), Robt (12), Anna (9) Capers N. (5).    

 
The 1900 Census of Rockingham Co., lists Ara A. Price, 
widowed head of house (68), John E. (36, Aug 1863), Robert 
A. (33, Feb 1867), and Capers N. (25, May 1875).  The 1900 
Census states that she was the mother of 10, with 5 still living, 
and that her father was born in Virginia, her mother in NC. 

 
(a)  Tecora/Terrenia G. Price 

        abt 1853 
She appeared on the 1860 Census, age 7, and was 
mentioned in Susanna Stokes Price’s will written 1864, but 
was not on subsequent censuses with the family.  She may 
have married or died before age 17. 

(b)  Sarah/Sallie A/W Price 
        abt 1855 

She appeared on the census with the family until after she 
was age 25. 

(c)  William/Willie H/W Price 
         abt 1857/8 

He appeared on the census with the family until after he 
was age 23. 

(d)  Martha H. Price 
        abt 1859 

The last census she appeared with the family was when she 
was age 11.  She may have married before age 21. 

(e)  Maria Price 
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        abt 1862 
The last census she appeared with the family was when she 
was age 18.  She may have married before age 28. 

     (f)  John E./Eddy Price 
        Aug 1863 

He was still living with his widowed mother in 1900. 
(g)  Charles/Charlie Price 

        abt 1865/6 
      (h)  Robert A. Price 
        Feb 1867 

He was still living with his widowed mother in 1900.  The 
1910 Census of Rockingham Co., NC, lists Robert A. Price 
(43), his mother Anna A Price (78), his nephew Charles E. 
Price (10), and his niece Eloise Price (6).  The census 
shows that Charles and Eloise were born in Texas. 

(i)  Marrie/Mary/Anna Price 
        abt 1869/81 
     (j)  Capers Norman Price  m. Edith 
          01 May 1875 

He was still living with his widowed mother in 1900.  His 
WWI Draft Registration in Sep 1918 (in Jacksonville, FL) 
gives his date of birth, middle name, and names his wife 
Edith in Covington, KY. 

 (2)  Hutchings Ferrell 
  b. Sylvanus A. Gatewood 
   25 Dec 1814 
  c. Robert Allen Gatewood m.  (1)  Eliza Jane Hodges 
   18 Jul 1818 – 05 Oct 1871 
   They married 18 Nov 1842 in Caswell Co., NC. 
   (1)  Annie Elizabeth Gatewood 
          abt 1843 
   (2)  Louisa F. (Lou) Gatewood 
          14 Jul 1845 
   (3)  Cassius Clay Gatewood 
          abt 1847 
       m.  (2)  Martha Burton 
        b. abt 1822 in VA 

They married 08 Sep 1848 in Pittsylvania Co., VA.  In the 1850 
Census, Robert Gatewood and his wife Martha are living next to 
Susan Burton Price (m. Harrison), his mother’s 1st cousin. 
(4)  Julius Allen Gatewood 
       abt 1849 
(5)  Charles F. Gatewood 
       26 Aug 1851 
(6)  Robert Whitt Gatewood  m. Bettie Hatchett 
       18 May 1855    abt 1861 
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She was the daughter of Thomas Hatchett and Julia Voss, and 
sister of Hilary Franklin Hatchett who married Elizabeth 
Virginia Pinnix.  The 1880 Census has R.W. Gatewood and 
wife Bettie (age 19), and a son whose name I can’t make out.  
Her obituary names her parents and her surviving daughter 
Mrs. Sue Fulton. 
(a)  Annie Lou Gatewood  m. Harvey B. Carter 
 19 Jul 1891 – 03 Apr 1927 

They married 30 Mar 1910.  Her obituary names her sisters 
Sue Fulton and Mrs. C.C. Gatewood, and her brothers J. A. 
Gatewood and Voss Gatewood. 

(b) Susan Barksdale Gatewood m. George W.W. Fulton 
            17 Jul 1892–27 Feb 1962 

They married 18 Sep 1924.  He was the son of Major 
Thomas Fulton and Nannie Henderson Hylton.  They had 
no children. 

(c)      m. C.C. Gatewood 
(d)  J. A. Gatewood 
(e)  Voss Gatewood 

(7)  John C. Gatewood 
       14 Sep 1863 

  d. William Henry Gatewood m.    Mary J. Hodges 
   07 Mar 1821 – 19 Jan 1900          05 Sep 1830 – 21 Feb 1890 

They married 30 Nov 1847.  She was the daughter of James 
Anderson Hodges (who was half-brother of Robert Gatewood’s 
wife Eliza Jane Hodges). 
(1)  James Monroe Gatewood 
 18 Mar 1850 
(2)  Melissa Ann Gatewood 
 12 Nov 1851 
(3)  John Dudley Gatewood 
 31 Aug 1853 
(4)  Mary Sue Gatewood 
 07 Dec 1856 
(5)  Martha S. Gatewood 
 06 Apr 1859 
(6)  William Henry Gatewood 
 14 May 1861 
(7)  Laura J. Gatewood 
 Apr 1864 
(8)  Thomas H. Gatewood 
 06 Jun 1866 
(9)  Alfonso Stokes Gatewood 
 20 Jul 1868 
 (a) Elizabeth Gatewood  m. Thomas Stephen Neal 
  They married 05 Aug 1933. 
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 (b) Dudley Gatewood 
(10) Ann Elizabeth Gatewood 
   06 Aug 1870 
(11) Samuel B. Gatewood 
   15 Jan 1873 

  e. Susan Mary Gatewood m.     Iverson Brooks Carter 
   13 Apr 1823 – 1895           1824 – 1916 

He was the son of Stewart Carter and Pencelia Voss.  Stewart 
Carter was the son of Presley Carter and Anne Waddell.  Pencelia 
Voss was the daughter of Greenberry Voss and Elizabeth Swann. 
(1)  John Carter  m. Catherine Hodges 
(2)  Thomas Carter  m. Virginia Carter 
(3)  Charles Carter   
(4)  Lewis Stewart Carter m. Mamie Estelle Hodges 

She was the daughter of Victoria Price and Thomas Jefferson 
Hodges.  More on this family is listed under Victoria Price 
earlier in this paper.  She was the daughter of John Smith Price 
and Susan Harrison. 

(5)  Edward Willis Carter m. Fannie Rosser 
  f. Martha Gatewood 
   21 Apr 1829 
  g. Elvira Gatewood 
   22 Sep 1831 
  h. Mary Agnes (Polly) Gatewood 
   27 Jan 1832 
  i. Lewis Gatewood 
   17 Jun 1834 
 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
   GATEWOOD EXCURSION 
 
In The Beaver Pond Neals of Virginia by Carl B. Neal, 1965, states that  
Thomas Stephen Neal married Elizabeth Gatewood on 05 Aug 1933 and 
that she was the daughter of Alfonze Stokes Gatewood (b. 20 Jul 1868), 
who was the son of William H. Gatewood and Mary Hodges.  Alfonze had 
a son named Dudley Gatewood.   
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
 

 2. Susan B. Stokes  m. William W. Price 
d. 1864    1795 – by July1860  
They married 25 Sep 1814 in Caswell Co., NC.  He was Susan’s 1st 
cousin, the son of her uncle Meredith Price and Mary McDaniel.  Per her 
father’s will (written 1844), Susanna has her own inheritance that is to go 
to Martha A. Blackard.  In her husband’s will (written 1857), he clarifies 
that Martha A. Price was Martha A. Blackard and is now Martha A. 
Dejearnette???(I couldn’t read).  There is a marriage license in Caswell 
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Co., NC, on 13 Dec 1856 for Martha A. Price and James Patton 
Dejarnette. 
 
Susan B. Price’s will was written 26 Jan 1864 and is recorded in Caswell 
Co. Will Book T, p. 63, July Court 1864.  She names Araminta A. Price, 
wife of Hiram M. Price and Dr. Thomas D. Stokes to hold money in trust 
for Martha A. Dejarnett wife of James P. Dejarnett.  If Martha died 
without heirs, her portion to go to Aramenta Price.  She also mentions 
Susan C. Chandler, wife of James C. Chandler, sister Sarah Gatewood, 
brother William Y. Stokes, Tecora G. Price (daughter of Hiram and 
Araminta Price).  Names executors brother Dr. Thomas D. Stokes and 
Hiram M. Price. 
 

 3. Martha Stokes   m. Charles Kennon Harrison 
       d.  Oct 1847     

They married 05 May 1818 in Caswell Co., NC.  He was the son of Major 
Thomas Harrison and Mary Kennon.  Charles was still a minor when his 
father died in 1799.  His father was brother of Charles P. Harrison’s 
grandfather.   
 
Caswell Co. WB P, Oct 1847, p. 504 provides an inventory of the personal 
property of Charles K. Harrison decd, including 19 slaves, by Thomas D. 
Harrison, administrator.  Caswell Co. January Court 1848, p. 526, divides 
the negroes of the estate of Charles K. Harrison, decd, between Thomas D. 
Harrison and Martha A. Price.     
 
The North Carolina Medical Journal, June 1881, pp. 319-366, reports on 
the trial of James Thomas Dejarnette for homicide in the death of his sister 
Mollie Dejarnette.  The article names Mollie’s great-grandfather C.K. 
Harrison, states that C.K. had 2 children Thos. D. and Mary, and that 
Mary was the grandmother of the defendant James Thomas Dejarnette.  It 
goes on to say that Mary Harrison had married Aaron Blackard and had 
one child Martha, the mother of the defendant. 
 

  a. Thomas D. Harrison  m.   Ann Virginia Caroline Harrison 
   d. bef Apr 1867         12 Aug 1827 –  

They married 30 Apr 1844 in Caswell Co., NC.  Virginia Caroline 
was the daughter of Charles P. Harrison and Susan Burton Price. 
Charles had died, and her uncle George Washington Price was the 
bondsman. Thomas and Virginia Caroline had no children.  After 
the death of Thomas, Virginia Caroline married (2) Smith Coleman 
Fulton on 14 Apr 1867. 

b. Mary Harrison   m.  Aaron C. Blackard 
d. by 1839 
They married 19 Dec 1836 in Caswell Co., NC.  Sylvanus Stokes 
named Martha Blackard in his will (written 1844) as his great- 
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grand-daughter.  The only Blackard marriage record in Caswell 
Co. for that time period is for an Aaron Blackard and Mary 
Harrison.  In William W. Price’s will he states that Martha A. Price 
was Martha A. Blackard, and is now Martha A. Dejarnette (will 
written 1857).  In the 1850 Census, Martha A. Price, age 12, is 
living with William W. Price and his wife Susannah Stokes (sister 
of Martha Stokes).  In the 1840 Census, there is one female child 
under the age of 10 in William W. Price’s household.  My theory is 
that William W. Price and his wife Susannah, being childless, 
adopted the daughter of her niece Mary Harrison Blackard after 
Mary died in childbirth.  Aaron Blackard appears on the tax lists in 
Patrick Co., VA, in 1839, 1840, and 1841. 
(1)  Martha A.  Blackard/Price        m.  James Patton Dejarnette 
       1838 - 1906     16 Feb 1822-29 Mar 1873 

They married 13 Dec 1856 in Caswell Co., NC (her name on 
her marriage license is Martha A. Price).  He was born in 
Pittsylvania Co., VA, son of James Dejarnette and Marie 
Pemberton Price.  He died in Pelham, Caswell Co., NC.  
Caswell County Family Tree has a picture of her gravestone 
with dates above.  Her birth date also was provided by Andy 
Blackard, who got his information from a great-granddaughter 
of Martha Blackard.  The great-granddaughter cites a copy of 
Martha Blackard’s death certificate that gives her name as 
Martha Blackard (and that she died in Rockingham Co., NC).   
(a)  James Thomas Dejarnette  
 01 Aug 1860 
 (i)  ??  m.  Thurman? 
  (aa)  Susan Thurman  
(b)  Mollie Dejarnette 
 19 May 1863 – 16 Jul 1880 

The North Carolina Medical Journal, June 1881, pp. 319-
366, reports on the trial of James Thomas Dejarnette for 
homicide in the death of his sister Mollie Dejarnette.  It 
states that he shot her on 08 July 1880 in a house of “ill-
fame” in Danville, VA.  He stated that he killed his sister to 
retrieve the honor of his father and himself, and that she 
had a younger innocent sister whom he wanted to protect.  
He was found not guilty by reason of insanity and he was 
placed in an insane asylum in Raleigh at the request of his 
friends (not ordered by the court). 
 
Mollie said she had been mislead by Edwin Luther Dechert 
who had promised marriage.  Mollie had left Danville for 
Harrisonburg with Mr. Dechert’s family about Christmas 
and came back in the spring, after her brother sent her 



 56 

money for her return.  Mollie lived with her mother until 
April, when she went to the Blonde House in Danville. 

 
(c)  Annie Lee Dejarnette    m.   Alexander Hamilton (Ham) 
     Hopper 
 31 May 1864-03 Oct 1941 03 Dec 1850 – 17 Aug 1926 

They were both born in Ruffin, Rockingham Co., NC, and 
married there 06 Jan 1885.  Ham died in Ruffin, and Annie 
died in Reidsville, Rockingham Co., NC. 
 

4. Nancy W. Stokes  m. William B. Swift 
  They married 01 Oct 1821 in Caswell Co., NC. 
 
 My guess is children of Nancy (Ann) Gatewood (m. 1809): 
 5. Polly (Mary) Stokes  m. Allen Stokes 
  They married 23 Feb 1829 in Caswell Co., NC. 
 6. Eliza Frances Stokes  m. Daniel Smith Price 

 abt 1822 – May 1887   04 Nov 1809 – 15 Aug 1871 
They married 14 Dec 1842 in Caswell Co., NC.  She was his 2nd wife.  He 
was the son of Meredith Price and Mary McDaniel.   Eliza’s sister or half-
sister, Susan B. Stokes, married Daniel’s brother William W. Price.  She 
died in Danville, VA. 
a. Mary Ann Price  m. Elijah Benton Withers 
 1847 – Jan 1869 

 7. William Y. Stokes  m.  (1)  Louisa T. Keesee 
There is a marriage bond for a William Y. Stokes and Louisa T. Keesee in 
Caswell Co., NC, dated 18 Dec 1829.  I’m placing her here. 
William Y. Stokes  m.  (2)  Lucy W. Hatchett 
There is a marriage bond for a William Y. Stokes and Lucy W. Hatchett in 
Caswell Co., NC, dated 28 Oct 1836.  I’m placing her here. 

 8. Dudley Stokes 
 9. Joel A. Stokes   m. Elizabeth C. Payne 

There is a marriage bond for a Joel A. Stokes and Elizabeth C.  Payne in 
Caswell Co., NC, dated 07 Oct 1836.  I’m placing her here. 

10. Thomas D. Stokes 
 He is named in his sister Susan’s 1864 will. 

 11. Allen Young Stokes  m. Margaret M. Pickett 
  25 Apr 1819 – 19 Nov 1886 

This Sylvanus names a son Allen Y. Stokes in his will, but the rest of the 
information is from an obituary posted on the internet that was in the 
Richmond Times-Dispatch on 24 April 1887.  It gives his dates above and 
states that Allen Young Stokes was the son of Sylvanus Stokes and Ann 
Gatewood.  They married 04 Jan 1848 in Virginia. His obituary states that 
Allen Stokes was in Richmond, VA, by 1845.  Margaret was the daughter 
of Charles Pickett and a cousin of George Pickett (Confederate General), 
and she and Allen Y. Stokes had the following children:   
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a.  Charles Pickett Stokes 
b.  George Sylvanus Stokes 
c.  Allen Young Stokes 
d.  William Green Stokes 
e.  Sylvanus Stokes 
f.  Thomas Dudley Stokes 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
    STOKES EXCURSION 
 
The Beaver Pond Neals of Virginia by Carl B. Neal, 1965, gives some 
information on a Stokes family that probably ties in here some way.   
 
Thomas Neal married Mary Ann Stokes 14 Nov 1758 in Lunenburg Co., VA.  
She was the daughter of Young Stokes, whose will was recorded in Lunenburg 
Co., VA, 10 Dec 1770 (Will Book 2, p. 362).  Young Stokes was the son of 
Sylvanus Stokes, who was the son of William Stokes, who was the son of 
Christopher Stokes.  Mary Ann’s estates was appraised and recorded on 13 Sep 
1828 in Charlotte Co., VA (Will Book 6, p. 170).  Thomas Neal’s will was 
recorded in Charlotte Co., VA, on 02 Jul 1798. 
 
John Neal, son of Thomas Neal and Mary Ann Stokes, married his 1st cousin 
Elizabeth Stokes, on 21 Sep 1784 in Pittsylvania Co., VA.  She was the daughter 
of his mother’s brother Silvanus Stokes. 
 
The brother Silvanus Stokes married Sarah Allen.  His will was recorded in 
Pittsylvania Co., VA, in 1798.  He named his wife Sarah and his children Allen, 
Silvanus, and Joel Stokes, Susana May, Elizabeth Allen Neal, and Sally Walker 
Dupuy.  It is thought that this son is the Silvanus who married Nancy Price. 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

  
L. Martha M. (Patsy) Price  m. Joel McDaniel 
 01 Jun 1776 – bef 18 Sep 1815  d. 1804-1809 
 

They married 19 Sep 1796 in Pittsylvania Co., VA.  He was the son of William 
McDaniel and Ann Smith, and brother of Mary McDaniel who married Martha’s 
brother Meredith Price.   
 
Caswell Co. Will Book E, p. 99, dated 01 May 1804 – George Burton is 
empowered to expose to public sale land owned by his father Charles Burton.  It 
is signed by Joel McDaniel, along with Maraday Price, Silvanus Stokes, J. Grant 
John Tennison, and George Burton. 
 
Caswell Co. Will Book F, p. 79, shows the sale of Joel McDaniel’s estate in Jan. 
and Feb. 1809. 
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Caswell Co. Guardians Accounts, 1814, p. 280, show Meredith Price as guardian 
for the Estate of Joel McDaniel, and shows expenses for William and John 
McDaniel for carrying tobacco to Lynchburg. 
 
Patsy’s mother Susannah signed a deed dated 18 Sep 1815 dividing what was 
loaned to her from William’s estate to be divided at her discretion upon her death 
(Pittsylvania Co., VA, Deed Book 21 or 27, p.9 or 39).  She names as her children 
and William’s Sally Burton, Robert Price, Patsy McDaniel (deceased), Polly 
McDaniel (deceased), and Nancy Stokes (deceased), Betsy Perkins, and John 
Price. 
 
Caswell Co.  Deed Book S, p. 303, dated 14 Nov 1817, shows the division of 
lands of Joel McDaniel to legatees (1) William McDaniel 230.75 acres and (2) 
John McDaniel 207.75 acres.  The land is adjacent to Luke Palmer and Silvanus 
Stokes.  Commissioners were Luke Palmer, James Burton, Benj. C. West and 
Daniel S. Farley, surveyor. 
 
1. William McDaniel 
 d. aft 14 Nov 1817 
 His father’s land was distributed to him in a deed dated 14 Nov 1817, 
 cited above. 
 
2. John S. McDaniel  m. Mary M. (Polly) Price 
 25 Dec 1806 – 27 Aug 1852  26 Sep 1811 – 01 Feb 1858 
 

I have that they married 08 Apr 1828 in Caswell Co., NC.  Anne 
Washburn has that they married 28 Apr 1828 in the First Presbyterian 
Church in Danville, VA.  Was the marriage bond in Caswell and marriage 
in Danville? 
 
Polly and John were double 1st cousins.  She was the daughter of Meredith 
Price, brother of John’s mother Patsy Price.  Her mother was Mary/Polly 
McDaniel, sister of John’s father Joel McDaniel. 
 
On 23 Jan 1828, John sold to Sylvanus Stokes 109 acres that were 
adjacent to Sylvanus and Luke Palmer.  Witnessed by William W. Price 
and Daniel S. Price (Caswell Co. Deed Book X, p. 383). 
 
John S. and Mary M. are buried in the Mahan Cemetery in Caswell Co., 
NC.  Gravestones give their dates of death and exact ages, from which 
birth dates are calculated.  Mary’s parents Meredith and Mary Price are 
buried in the same cemetery. 
 
a.  Joel A. McDaniel 
     12 Jan 1834 – 09 Aug 1859 
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He is buried in the Mahan Cemetery in Caswell Co., NC.  Gravestone 
gives his dates of death and exact age, from which birth date is 
calculated.   
 

M. Major Price    m. (1) Sally Waller 
 10 Oct 1779 – 03 Mar1829         d. bef Oct 1803 

They married 19 May 1801 in Pittsylvania Co., VA (marriage bond 12 May?)  
She was the daughter of John Waller and Lydia Dodson.   

 1. Nancy Fuqua Price  m. Meriwether Lewis Bolton 
d. by 1830 
They married 23 Sep 1823 in Pittsylvania Co., VA; bondsman was 
Pleasant Waller.  Meriwether was the son of William Bolton and Mary 
(Polly) Dixon.  William Bolton and Thomas Meriwether Bolton (whose 
daughter married Nancy’s half-brother below) were brothers and sons of 
Charles Boulton and Elizabeth Hickens.  Nancy had died by 1830 when 
Meriwether married Sarah B. Hall and had moved near Jefferson City, 
MO. 

 a. Mary Ann Bolton 
 

 Major Price    m. (2)  Susan Lawson 
              d.  11 Feb 1822 
 They married 13 Oct 1803 in Halifax Co., VA.  By 17 Jun 1809, they were living 
 in Caswell Co., NC. 
 2. Sophia D. Price 
 3. Thomas Lawson Price  m. Lydia Bolton 
  19 Jan 1809 – 16 Jul 1870  24 Apr 1807 

They married 21 Sep 1830 in Caswell Co., NC.  She was the daughter of 
Thomas Meriwether Boulton and Phoebe Waller.  Thomas Meriwether 
Bolton and William Bolton (whose son Meriwether Lewis Bolton married 
Thomas Lawson Price’s half-sister above) were brothers and sons of 
Charles Boulton and Elizabeth Hickens.  Thomas Lawson Price settled in 
Jefferson City, MO, about 1831.  He was the first Mayor of Jefferson City, 
MO, and was elected Lieutenant Governor of MO in 1849. 

 4.  Martha Allen Price  m. John W. Wells 
  They were in Jefferson Co., MO, by Jan 1836. 


